일반동사(F)
Failed to (do st); (하려던 것들) 못하다, 안 하다
(Paul is talking to a cashier at a supermarket)
Paul: Excuse me I was here a little while ago and I bought some bread. 죄송한데 제가 좀 전에 여기서 빵을 샀거든요.
Cashier: Oh yes I remember you. 아 네 기억나요.
Paul: But when I got home it wasn't in my bag. 근데 집에 갔더니 빵이 없더라고요.
Cashier: Do you have a receipt? 영수증 있으세요?
Paul: Yes here it is. I paid for it but you failed to put it in the bag. 네 여기요. 계산했는데 그쪽서 가방에 넣지 않으셨어요.
Cashier: I'm sorry about that. Go and help yourself to another one. 죄송해요. 가서 또 하나 가져오세요.
Paul: Thank you. My wife will kill me if I don't come home with bread. 고마워요. 빵을 안 가져 오면 집사람한테 혼죠.
Cashier: In fact you can take two loaves of bread. I'm sorry for the inconvenience. 빵 2개를 가져가요. 불편을 끼쳐 죄송해요.
Paul: Thank you. 고맙습니다.
Cashier: Have a nice evening. 안녕히 가세요.

기억할만한 표현 

▶a little while ago: 잠깐 전에
"I was talking to him a little while ago." (좀 전에 제가 그와 얘기를 하고 있었죠.)
▶help yourself: (직접) ~하세요
"Help yourself to more dessert if you like." (원하시면 얼마든지 디저트 더 가져다 드세요.)
▶my wife will kill me if: ~하면 우리 아내가 저한테 엄청 화를 낼 겁니다
"My husband will kill me if I use the credit card without telling him."  (남편한테 말 안하고 카드를 쓰면 가만 있지 않을 겁니다.)

Fall head over heels (for someone); (누구와) 사랑에 빠지다
(Jim is talking to Roger at work)
Jim: Did you hear? 그 얘기 들었어?
Roger: Hear what? 뭘 들어?
Jim: Scott's in love. Scott 이 사랑에 빠진 거.
Roger: Again? 또?
Jim: Yes. He fell head over heels for a stewardess he met on a flight. 응. 비행기에서 만난 승무원에 푹 빠졌어.
Roger: It sounds like Scott. He can be flighty sometimes. Scott 다운 얘기다. 어떤 때 보면 가벼워.
Jim: He says it's serious. 본인은 진짜라는데.
Roger: He always says it's serious. 말은 항상 진짜라고 그러지.
Jim: He does fall in love so easily. Scott 은 사랑에 참 쉽게도 빠져.
Roger: I hope he doesn't get hurt this time. 이번엔 상처를 안 입었으면 좋겠다.

기억할만한 표현

▶a person is flighty: 경솔하다.
“You can’t trust everything she says. She’s flighty.” (그 여자가 말하는 거 다 믿을 순 없어. 가벼운 사람이야.)
▶It’s serious: 진지하다. 진짜다.
“She wants to marry him. It’s serious.” (그녀는 그와 결혼하고 싶어해. 진심이야.)
▶fall in love: 사랑에 빠지다.
“I fell in love with San Francisco when I first went there.” (샌프란시스코는 처음 갔을 때 좋아하게 됐어.)

Fall in love; 사랑에 빠지다
(Oliver is talking to his co-worker Lucy)
Oliver: Why are you so late? Problem putting your makeup on! 왜 이렇게 늦었어? 화장이 잘 안 돼 힘들었나 봐?
Lucy: Don't be so sarcastic. It was my girlfriend Suzie. 그렇게 비꼬지 마. 친구 수지 때문이야.
Oliver: What's her problem this time? 이번엔 또 뭐가 문제래?
Lucy: She's just broken up with her boyfriend so she needed a shoulder to cry on. 남자와 헤어졌대. 위로할 사람이 필요하대.
Oliver: She never seems to have a relationship with anyone for very long. 누구와 오래 사귀는 걸 못 본 것 같아.
Lucy: It's not her fault. She just seems to have bad luck with men. 수지 잘못 아니야. 남자 복이 없어서 그런 것 같아.
Oliver: You're her friend. You should give her some advice. 넌 친구잖아. 충고를 좀 해 줘야지.
Lucy: When she falls in love she doesn't listen to anyone. 수지는 사랑에 빠지면 누구 말도 안 들어.
Oliver: But she listens to you when you have a problem. 문제가 생기면 네 말은 듣잖아.
Lucy: Sometimes when she's desperate. 절박할 때 가끔.

기억할만한 표현

▶put (st) on: (also put on st) 무엇을 바르다. 
"She usually puts on lipstick." (그녀는 립스틱을 바르는 편입니다.)
▶break up (with so): (누구와) 헤어지다. 
"I'm angry at him but I'm not going to break up." (그 남자한테 화가 난 거지 헤어지려는 건 아니에요.)
▶need a shoulder to cry on: 위로해줄 사람이 필요하다. 
"Call me if you need a shoulder to cry on." (위로해줄 사람이 필요하면 나한테 전화해요.)

Fall off; 줄어들다, 떨어지다
(Helen and her daughter's teacher are having a parent/teacher conference)
Teacher: I called you in because I wanted to let you know of Jennifer's progress in class.
제니퍼의 학업 진행상황 때문에 학교까지 오시라고 했습니다.
Helen: Good. I thought she had done something wrong. 다행이네요. 전 또 걔가 무슨 잘못을 했나 생각했어요.
Teacher: Well she isn't perfect but there's nothing serious. 완벽하다고 말할 수는 없지만 그리 심각한 문제는 없습니다.
Helen: What's the problem? 무슨 문제죠?
Teacher: She hasn't been doing her homework lately. 요즘 들어 숙제를 안 해오는군요.
Helen: I thought she's been doing well. 저는 딸애가 잘 해온 줄 알았는데요.
Teacher: She is doing well but her effort has fallen off. 잘 하고는 있지만 노력하는 정도가 줄어든 겁니다.
Helen: So she can do the work? The only problem is she's not doing homework?
그럼 수업을 따라갈 수는 있는 거죠? 문제는 숙제를 안 한다는 것 뿐이죠?
Teacher: She can do anything she puts her mind to. 뭐든지 하려고만 하면 할 수 있는 아입니다.
Helen: I'll talk to her about her homework. 숙제 하는 것에 대해 제가 얘기를 해보죠.

기억할만한 표현 

▶call (so) in: (의논하러) 사무실로 불러들이다 
"He called me in to tell me about the company picnic." (그는 회사 야유회 일로 저를 불렀던 겁니다.) 
▶put (one's) mind to (st): ~에 집중하다
"You can pass the class if you put your mind to it." (집중하기만 하면 너도 이 과목 낙제를 면할 수 있어.)


Feel a cold [flu] coming on; 감기가 들려고 한다
(David and his wife Dina are preparing for dinner)
David: Let's take a walk after dinner tonight. 저녁 먹은 후에 산보하자.
Dina: I think I'm going to pass. 난 사양할래.
David: Why? You love to talk walks. 왜? 당신 산보하는 것 좋아하잖아.
Dina: I do but I feel a cold coming on. 좋아하지 그런데 감기가 들려고 하는 것 같아.
David: You're starting to feel sick? 아프려고 하는 거야?
Dina: Yes a little. 응 약간 그래.
David: Can I get you anything? 뭐 내가 좀 해줄까?
Dina: No thanks. I'll just drink tons of water and take some Vitamin C. 됐어. 물이나 많이 마시고 비타민 C 좀 먹을게.
David: Are you feeling tired? 피곤해?
Dina: Yes. If I don't feel better in the morning I'll call in sick. 응. 아침에 나아지지 않으면 아파서 못 간다고 전화할거야.

기억할만한 표현 

▶ (one) is going (or have ) to pass (on): 사양해야겠어 
"I have to pass on lunch with you tomorrow. how about next week?" (내일 점심 사양해야겠는데요. 다음 주는?)
▶tons of (st): 아주 많은 
"I have tons of pens and pencils in my desk." (전 책상 안에 펜하고 연필이 엄청 많습니다.)
▶call in sick: 아파서 못나가겠다고 전화하다 
"I have to call in sick because my cold is getting worse." (감기가 더 심해져서 전 아파서 못나가겠다고 전화해야겠어요.)

Feel free to (do); 얼마든지 ~하세요, 맘 편히 ~하세요 (I)
(Dan is visiting Roger's house in Los Angeles. They're both drinking beer)
Dan: This is a nice place. 집 좋은데 그래.
Roger: Thanks. I really like it. 고마워. 나도 맘에 들어.
Dan: How long have you been living here? 여기 산지 얼마나 됐지?
Roger: Oh about three years. 글쎄 한 3년 됐나. Would like a refill? 좀 더 마실래?
Dan: Sure. 그러지.
Roger: There's more beer in the refrigerator. Feel free to help yourself to more. 냉장고에 맥주가 더 있어. 얼마든지 더 마셔.
Dan: Thanks. You have to come up and visit me in Seattle sometime. 고마워. 자네도 언제 나보러 시애틀에 올라 와야지.
Roger: I'd like to. I've been so busy lately. 그러고 싶어. 최근에는 많이 바빴어.
Dan: How about coming up before Christmas? 크리스마스 전으로 와보는 건 어때?
Roger: That sounds like a good idea. I have some free time in November. 좋은 생각이야. 11월에 좀 시간이 나거든.

기억할만한 표현 

▶a refill: (음료수를) 다시 채워주기 
"I want some more coffee. I'm going to get a refill."
▶come up: (북쪽으로) 올라오다 come down (내려오다)
"You should come down and visit me in Mexico." (저 보러 멕시코로 내려오셔야 돼요.)
▶how about ?: ~은 어떨까요?
"How about going to a movie tonight?" (오늘 저녁 영화 보러 가는 건 어때요?


Feel free to (do or have st); 편하게 ~을 하세요 (II)
(Jeanine is visiting Kathy)
Kathy: Hi Jeanine come in! Make yourself at home. 안녕 지닌 들어와! 우리 집이다 생각하고 편하게 해.
Jeanine: Hi Kathy. Thanks. 안녕 캐시. 고마워.
Kathy: Give me your coat. 코트 줘.
Jeanine: Thanks. Oh I have to call my mother and wish her a happy birthday later.
고마워. 오 나중에 우리 어머니한테 전화 드려서 생신 축하 드린다는 말 해야 해.
Kathy: Feel free to use the phone. 편하게 전화 써.
Jeanine: She turns 80 today. 오늘로 여든 되셨거든.
Kathy: 80?! Wow! How is she going to celebrate? 여든?! 와! 생신 축하는 어떻게 하신대?
Jeanine: The whole family is taking her out for dinner. 가족이 모두 어머니 모시고 밖에서 저녁 대접하려고.
Kathy: That's great. 좋다.
Jeanine: We're taking her to her favorite restaurant. 어머니께서 제일 좋아하시는 식당으로 모실 거야.

기억할만한 표현

▶make yourself at home: 내 집이다 생각하고 편하게 하다.
“Come in, Jim. Make yourself at home.” (들어와요, 짐. 내 집이다 생각하고 편하게 해.)
▶(One) turns (a particular age): (몇 세가) 되다.
“I turn 63 in August.” (난 8월에 63세가 돼.)
▶take (one) out: (누구를) 밖에서 대접하다.
“I took her out to lunch. We had a great time.” (그녀에게 점심 대접했는데 즐거웠어.)

Feel like death warmed over (=look ~); 아주 피곤하다, 탈진해 보인다
(Two friends are talking in Sam's apartment)
Alice: You don't look so good. What's wrong? 너 좀 안 좋아 보여. 왜 그러니?
Sam: My nose's stuffed-up I've got a runny nose and I ache all over. 코가 꽉 막힌데다가 콧물도 흐르고 온 몸이 아파.
Alice: Poor guy. What are you taking for it? 이런 불쌍할 때가. 약은 뭘 먹고 있니?
Sam: Nothing. I don't have anything to take. 아무것도. 먹을 약이 아무 것도 없어.
Alice: Let me see what I have in my apartment. In the mean time drink some juice. Apt에 뭐가 있는지 볼게. 그 동안 주스 좀 마셔.
Sam: Okay but please hurry. 알았어 좀 서둘러 줘.
Alice: I'm back. How are you doing? 나 다시 왔어. 좀 어떠니?
Sam: I feel like death warmed over. 피곤해 죽겠어. 
Alice: Well I brought some pills. 자 내가 약을 좀 가져왔어.
Sam: Great! I need some relief. 잘됐네! 이제 좀 살자. 

기억할만한 표현

▶stuffed-up: (감기 등으로) 코가 꽉 막히다
"I have been stuffed-up for four days." (전 벌써 나흘 째 코가 꽉 막힌 채인 겁니다.)
▶a runny nose: 콧물 흐름
"Robin has a sore throat and a runny nose." (Robin은 목이 아프고 콧물이 흐릅니다.)
▶in the mean time : 그 동안 
"I didn't see her for two years and in the mean time she got married." (2년간 그녀를 못 봤는데 그 간 걔가 결혼을 했더군.)

Feel not so hot. 기분이, 몸 상태가 그리 좋지 않다 (I)
(Martin comes home from work. His wife greets him in the kitchen)
Sylvia: Hi. What would you like for dinner? 여보. 저녁은 뭘 먹고 싶어?
Martin: Nothing. I don't feel so hot. 아무 것도. 몸이 별로 안 좋아.
Sylvia: What's the matter? 왜?
Martin: I think I'm coming down with something. 감기가 오려나 봐.
Sylvia: You haven't been under the weather for a long time. 오랫동안 아프지 않더니.
Martin: Everyone in the office is coughing sneezing or out sick. 거의 모두 기침하고 콧물 흘리던지 아예 출근도 못했어.
Sylvia: I'll fix you some hot water lemon and honey. 뜨거운 물에 레몬하고 꿀 타서 줄게.
Martin: That sounds good.  그거 좋을 것 같아.
Sylvia: You should lie down and get some rest. 누워서 좀 쉬어.
Martin: Good idea. 좋은 생각이야.

기억할 만한 표현

▶come down with st: ~로 아프다 ~ 걸리다 
"She's coming down with a cold again." (그녀는 또 감기 걸렸습니다.)
▶under the weather: 가볍게 앓다 아프다
"You look like you're under the weather." (당신 좀 아픈 것처럼 보이는군요.)
▶out sick: 병가를 얻다 아파서 직장에 못나오다 
"He's been out sick for a long time." (그는 오랫동안 병가 중입니다.)

Feel not feel so hot; 몸이 별로 좋지 않다 (II)
(Mike comes home from work and his wife greets him in the kitchen)
Sarah: Hi what would you like for dinner? 왔어. 저녁 뭐 먹을래?
Mike: Nothing. I don't feel so hot. 안 먹을래. 몸이 안 좋아.
Sarah: What's the matter? 무슨 일이야?
Mike: I think I'm coming down with something. 병이 날 것 같아.
Sarah: You haven't been under the weather for a long time. 몸 아파 본 거 한 참 됐잖아. 
Mike: Almost everyone in the office is coughing sneezing or out sick. 사무실사람  다 기침하고 재채기하거나 병가야.
Sarah: I'll fix you some hot water lemon and honey. 뜨거운 물에 레몬하고 꿀 타줄게.
Mike: That sounds good. 그거 좋다.
Sarah: You should lie down and get some rest. 당신 누워서 좀 쉬어야겠다.
Mike: Good idea. 좋은 생각이야.

기억할만한 표현

▶(one) comes down with st: (아플 것 같은) 기운이 있다.
“She’s coming down with a cold again.” (그녀는 또 감기 기운이 있어.)
▶(one) is under the weather: 몸이 별로 좋지 않다. 약간 아픈 기운이 있다.
“You look like you‘re under the weather.” (너 조금 아파 보인다.)
▶out sick: 병가.
“He’s been out sick for a week now.” (그 사람 지금 1주일 병가 중이야.)


Fill a prescription; (약국에서) 처방약을 받다
(Lucy is at the drugstore)
Lucy: How long will it take to fill this prescription? 이 처방전 약을 받으려면 얼마나 걸릴까요?
Pharmacist: Oh about twenty minutes. 아 한 20분 정도요.
Lucy: Oh dear. I'm running late. Is there any way you could speed it up? 어머나. 저 늦었는데요. 더 빨리 될 방법이 없을까?
Pharmacist: I'm sorry but there are five orders ahead of yours and I'm the only one here.
죄송하지만 댁보다 먼저 주문이 들어온 처방전이 다섯 개나 되는데다 여기에 저 혼자밖에 없거든요.
Lucy: I understand. I guess I can run some errands. 알겠어요. 볼 일을 좀 보고 와야겠어요.
Pharmacist: Do you want a brand name or a generic? 상표 있는 약으로 할까요 아니면 일반 약으로 할까요?
Lucy: What's the difference? 차이가 뭐죠?
Pharmacist: The generic is just as good as the brand name and you'll save 7 dollars. 일반약도 상표있는 것과 같은데 7달러는  싸죠.
Lucy: Good. I'll take the generic. 알았어요. 일반 약으로 할게요.
Pharmacist: Okay. It'll be ready in about twenty minutes. 알겠습니다. 20분 정도면 준비될 거에요.

기억할만한 표현 

▶run late: (일정보다) 늦다
"I ran late all day so I didn't get everything done."
▶speed it up: 
"If she speeds up her typing she'll make too many mistakes." (타자 속력을 높이면 그녀는 실수가 너무 많아질 걸요.)
▶run errands: 심부름 가다 잔일을 보다
"I have been running my errands all day and now I'm going to rest."(저는 하루 종일 심부름 다녀서 이젠 쉴 겁니다.)

Fill (so) in on (st); (무엇에 대해서) 알려줘 (I)
(Mary and John are talking to their son Eddie about a new girl in Eddie's class)
Mary: So fill us in on this new girl in your class. 그래 네 반에 전학 온 여학생 얘기 좀 봐.
Eddie: Her name is Kelly. 이름은 Kelly에요.
John: Where is she from? 어디 살다 왔대?
Eddie: Her family just moved here from Chicago. 시카고 살다 가족 모두 이사 왔대요.
Mary: So is this love at first sight? 그래 첫 눈에 반한 거니?
Eddie: We had lunch in the cafeteria and we just hit it off. 카페테리아에서 점심 같이 먹었는데 금새 친해졌어요.
John: Don't rush anything. Take time to get to know her. 서두르지 마라. 시간을 갖고 어떤 애인지 차근차근 알아가야지.
Mary: Your father and I noticed that you've started wearing nicer clothes. 아빠하고 내가 보니 점잖은 옷을 입기 시작하더라.
Eddie: Oh yeah. 아 예.
Mary: Yes. And just for that we think you should ask her to marry you. 그래. 그래서 말인데 너 처혼 해야 되는 거 아닌가 싶었다.

기억할만한 표현

▶love at first sight: 첫 눈에 사랑에 빠지다. 
"With my wife and I it was love at first sight." (아내와 나는 첫 눈에 사랑에 빠졌어.)
▶hit it off: 금새 친해진다 반하다. 
"We hit it off just after a few minutes of talking to each other." (우린 이야기를 나눈 지 몇 분 만에 친해졌어.)
▶Don't rush anything: 서두르지 마.
"You met him last week and you're already in love with him? Don't rush anything." 

Fill (one) in; (자리를 비웠을 때 일을) 얘기해주다 (II)
(David is talking to his co-worker Ken)
David: Welcome back Ken. It's great to see you. 돌아온 거 환영해 켄. 반가워. 
Ken: Thanks. It's good to be back. 고마워. 돌아오니 좋네.
David: How long were you in the hospital? 병원엔 얼마나 입원했었지?
Ken: Two weeks. Fill me in on what I missed. 2주 있었어. 내가 없었을 때 무슨 일 있었는지 얘기해 봐. 
David: Well we have a new receptionist downstairs in the lobby. 글쎄 아래층 로비에 안내직원이 새로 왔어.
Ken: I saw her but I didn't catch her name. 봤어. 그런데 이름은 못 들었어.
David: Her name is Elizabeth. She started last Monday. 엘리자베스야. 지난 월요일부터 일하기 시작했어.
Ken: Anything change here at work? 회사에 바뀐 거 있어?
David: No. Same old, same old. 없어. 똑같아.
Ken: Well it's good to see everybody and it's good to be back at work. 어쨌든 사람을 보니 좋고 직장에 돌아오니 좋다.

기억할만한 표현

▶I didn’t catch (one’s) name: 이름을 잘 못 들었어요. 이름을 잘 모르겠어요.
A: “My name is Joe.” B: “I’m sorry. I didn’t catch your name.” (죄송합니다. 성함을 잘 못 들었습니다.) A: “It’s Joe.” 
▶(One) started…: (직장에서) 일을 시작한 것이….
“I started here about two years ago.” (여기서 일한 게 2년쯤 돼.)
▶same old, same old: 똑같아.
“Work is just work. It’s the same old, same old.” (일은 그냥 일이야. 예전하고 똑같아.)

Find fault with (so); 흠만 잡다
(A father is looking at his son's school grades as his wife makes coffee.)
Al: Look at these grades! They're terrible! 이 성적들 좀 봐! 엉망이잖아!
Ellen: He got four Bs and one C. Those are good grades. B가 네 개 C가 한 개예요. 그 정도 성적이면 괜찮아요.
Al: No they're not! He's got to study harder. He’d be getting all As. 아니지 더 열심히 해야지. 전부 다 A를 받아야지.
Ellen: He's not a machine Al. He also works part-time after school. 기계는 아니에요. 방과 후 아르바이트도 하잖아요.
Al: He has to focus on his studies. 공부에 전념을 해야지.
Ellen: You're always finding fault with him. 당신은 항상 그애 결점만 들춰요.
Al: I got As when I was in high school. When is he coming home? 난 고등학교 때 A만 받았다고. 애는 언제 돌아와.
Ellen: Any minute now. Be easy on him.  금방이라도 올 거예요. 살살 하세요.
Al: He's got to do better than this. 이것보다는 잘해야지.
Elliot: Mom Dad I'm home! 엄마 아빠 다녀왔습니다!

기억할만한 표현

▶focus on (st): 집중하다. 전념하다.
“Today we’re going to focus on Leonardo De Vinci.” (오늘은 레오나르도 다빈치를 집중적으로 다루겠어요.)
▶any minute now: 금방이라도.
“Any minute now it’s going to rain.” (금방이라도 비가 오겠어.)
▶Be easy on (so): 너그럽게 봐주다.
“He didn’t cause the car accident. Be lenient on your son.” (아들 때문에 차 사고가 난 것도 아닌데 너그럽게 봐줘.)


Find one's way; ~제대로 길을 찾다
(Kirk is standing on a street corner when a car stops at the red light. The driver leans out the window and says)
Driver: Excuse me. Can you help me? 죄송하지만 저 좀 도와주시겠어요?
Kirk: What's the trouble? 왜 그러시죠?
Driver: I thought I could find my way around here but I'm lost. 길을 찾을 수 있을 것 같았는데 전혀 모르겠네요.
Kirk: Where are you headed? 어디로 가시는데요?
Driver: I'm looking for City Hall. 시청을 찾고 있어요.
Kirk: You're a stone's throw away. 아주 가까이 계시는데요.
Driver: What a stroke of luck. 다행이네요.
Kirk: It's straight ahead three blocks; on your right. 쭉 앞으로 세 블록 가시면 됩니다. 우측으로 있어요.
Driver: What's the address? 주소가 뭐죠?
Kirk: I don't know but you'll see a sign. 모르지만 표지판이 보일 겁니다.
Driver: That's sounds easy enough. 쉬운 것 같네요.

기억할만한 표현

▶where are you headed? : 어디로 가세요? 
“I asked the boys where they were headed and they said to see a movie.”
▶a stone's throw away (from st): 아주 가깝다 
"Her house is a stone's throw away from the freeway." (그녀의 집은freeway서 아주 가까이 있습니다.)
▶what a stroke of luck: 다행이네요 행운입니다
"It was a stroke of luck that the lost purse was returned.”

Finish it off; 다 먹다(마시다)
(Two roommates are talking one Saturday morning)
Brian: (Looking in the refrigerator) There’s only enough orange juice for one glass. 오렌지주스가 한 컵 따를 정도 밖에 없어.
Randy: You can finish it off. I’ll buy more later. 네가 다 마셔도 돼. 내가 나중에 더 살 거야.
Brian: What are you having for breakfast? 넌 아침으로 뭐 먹을 건데?
Randy: I already had breakfast. I had some toast and coffee.난 벌써 아침 먹었어. 토스트하고 커피 좀 했어.
Brian: You already had breakfast? 아침을 벌써 먹었어?
Randy: Yes. 응.
Brian: You’re an early riser, Randy. 랜디 넌 아침 형이구나.
Randy: I know. I’m also a light sleeper. 맞아. 또 잠을 깊이 못 자는 스타일이기도 해.
Brian: I fall asleep the minute my head hits the pillow. 난 머리가 베개에 닿기만 하면 잠들어.
Randy: I wish I could do that. 나도 그랬으면 좋겠다.

기억할만한 표현

▶(One) is an early riser: 아침에 일찍 일어나는 사람. 아침형.
“My wife is an early riser, but I like to sleep late.”(우리 집사람은 아침형인데 난 늦잠 자는 걸 좋아해.)
▶(One) is a light sleeper: 선잠을 자는 사람. 잠을 깊이 못 자는 사람.
“I’m a light sleeper. I wake up when I hear any sound at night.”(난 잠을 깊이 못 자. 밤에 무슨 소리만 나면 깨.)
▶The minute or second (one's) head hits the pillow: 베개에 머리가 닿는 순간. 
“My brother falls asleep the second his head hits the pillow.(우리 형은 베개를 베는 순간 잠들어.)
Finish off (st); 완성하다, 끝내다
(David is talking to his brother Brian one Saturday morning while having breakfast)
David: It looks like it's going to be a nice day. 오늘 날씨 좋을 것 같네.
Brian: Yes it does. What are you going to do? 그러게. 뭐 할 거야?
David: After I finish off these eggs I'm going to wash my car. 이 계란 다 먹으면 난 세차할 거야.
Brian: Wash your car? Are you going some places special today? 세차? 오늘 어디 특별한 데 가?
David: Yes. I'm going out with Janice tonight. And what are you doing? 응. 저녁에 재니스하고 데이트가 있어. 형은 뭐해?
Brian: I'm going to head for the beach and catch some rays. 바닷가에나 가서 일광욕이나 좀 할까 봐.
David: Don't stay in the sun too long. It's not good for you. 햇볕에 너무 오래 있지 마. 별로 안 좋아.
Brian: I won't. I'm bringing a beach umbrella with me. 안 그럴게. 파라솔 가져갈 거야.
David: Oh and I'll be home late tonight. 어 나는 오늘 저녁 집에만 있을 거야.
Brian: I thought so. 그럴 것 같았어.

기억할만한 표현 

▶go out with (so): ~와 데이트하러 나가다 
"I'm going out with Roberta on Saturday." (전 토요일에 Roberta와 데이트하러 나갑니다.)
▶head for (a place): ~로 떠나다 여행가다 
"I'm going to head for the mall." (저는 쇼핑몰에 갑니다.)
▶catch some rays: (속어) 일광욕하다 
"I want to catch some rays by the pool this weekend." (난 이번 주말에 선탠하고 싶어.)

Finish up; ~을 완성하다, 끝내다
(Doug and Roger are house painters at work)
Doug: How's it going in here? 여기는 어떻게 돼가고 있어?
Roger: I just have to paint one wall and the bathroom will be done. 벽 한 면만 칠하면 화장실은 끝날 거야.
Doug: Good. 좋았어.
Roger: How are you doing? 넌 어때?
Doug: Okay. I'll finish up in the kitchen and then start on the living room. 괜찮아. 부엌을 끝내고 나면 거실을 시작할 거야.
Roger: That's a big living room. 거실은 굉장히 크잖아.
Doug: I know. 맞아.
Roger: I'll help you in there when I finish in here. 여기 끝나면 내가 가서 도와줄게.
Doug: (looking at his watch) Actually it's almost lunch time: (시계를 보며) 그 것보다 거의 점심 시간이야.
Roger: Then let's take a break before we start the living room. 그럼 거실 시작하기 전에 쉬자.

기억할만한 표현

▶ how's it going?: 일이 잘 돼갑니까? 어떻게 지내십니까?
"How's it going? Are you almost finished with your homework?" (어떻게 잘 돼가? 숙제는 거의 다 끝냈니?)
▶ be done: ~를 끝내다 
"I'm done with the newspaper. You can have it now." (전 신문 다 봤어요. 가져가셔도 돼요.)
▶ start on (st): ~를 시작하다 
"I'm going to start on making dinner." (저는 이제 저녁 만들기 시작할 건데요.)


Fire away; 얼마든지 얘기하세요, 어서 말해보세요
(John asks Erica to come into his office)
John: Come in Erica. 어서 와요.
Erica: Hi John. 안녕하세요.
John: Hi Erica. Randy told me yesterday that you wanted to talk to me. 하이. Randy가 그러는데 나한테 할 말이 있다고.
Erica: Yes. I wanted to get some feedback on some ideas I have. 네. 나한테 아이디어가 몇 있는데 의견 좀 듣고 싶어서.
John: Fire away. What's on your mind? 어서 얘기해보세요. 무슨 얘기죠?
Erica: I have an idea that may help with the number of students in some classes. 학생들에게 도움이 될만한 아이디어가 있어요.
John: Yes. We have two classes with very low registration and attendance. 예. 등록 출석률이 저조한 수업이 2개가 있죠.
Erica: Classes 1 and 3 right? 1반과 3반이죠?
John: That's right. What's your idea? 맞아요. 무슨 아이디어인가요?
Erica: Take some students in class 2 and put them in class 1.  2반 학생 몇을 1반에 넣어요.
John: And take some students in class 4 and put them in class 3? 그리고 4반 학생 몇을 3반에 넣는다?
Erica: You've got the picture. 그렇죠.
John: I like it. Let's have a meeting with all the teachers involved. 좋아요. 선생님 모두들을 모아서 회의를 해봅시다.

기억할만한 표현 

▶get some feedback (on stg): ~의 반응 의견 등을 알아보다 
"I'd like to get your feedback on the plan I suggested for the picnic." (야유회안에 대한 의견을 좀 들어보고 싶어.)
▶you've got the picture: 제 말을 알아들으셨군요
A:"Paint the corners of the room first and then the walls?" B:"That's right. You've got the picture." (맞아. 잘 이해하셨군.)

Fish around for (st): ~를 찾다
(Roberta sees Roger looking in his backpack)
Roberta: What are you looking for? 뭐 찾고 있어?
Roger: I'm fishing around for my pen. 펜 찾고 있어.
Roberta: There's a pen on the kitchen table. 부엌 식탁에 펜이 있어.
Roger: No I want this pen. 아니 난 이 펜이 좋겠어.
Roberta: What's so special about that pen? 그 펜은 왜 그렇게 특별한데?
Roger: It's a pen my father handed down to me. It used to be his father's pen. 물려 받은 건데. 할아버지 거였어. 그한테 주신거지.
Roberta: That sounds like a special pen. 정말 특별한 펜이네.
Roger: It is. 그래.
Roberta: Why don't you empty out the backpack? 책가방을 비워보지 그래?
Roger: Take everything out? That's a good idea.  모조리 다 꺼내? 그거 괜찮은 생각인데.

기억할만한 표현

▶hand down (st) to (so): (무엇을) ~에게 물려주다
"My mom handed me down these dishes. They belonged to her" (엄마가 이 그릇들을 물려주셨죠. 어머니 것이었어요.)
▶used to (be): (예전에) ~하던 것이었다 ~하고는 했다
"He used to live in Chicago but now he lives in Los Angeles." (그는 시카고에 살았었지만 지금은 LA에서 삽니다.)
▶empty out: (장소나 가방 등을) 깨끗이 완전히 비우다
"I have to empty out my closets. There's so much junk in it." (옷장을 완전히 비워야 돼. 쓸데 없는 물건이 많아요.)

Fit right in; (누가) 적임자다
(Arthur and Andy are talking about the secretary they recently hired)
Arthur: How is the new secretary working out? 새로 입사한 비서는 잘 하고 있어?
Andy: It's been two weeks and Ellen is doing fine. 엘런이 입사하고 2주 됐는데 잘 하고 있어.
Arthur: Any problems? 무슨 문제는 없고?
Andy: No. Everyone likes her. She fits right in. 아니. 모두 앨런을 좋아해. 적임자야.
Arthur: That's what I want to hear. 그거 반가운 소리네.
Andy: It's hard finding a good secretary; especially one who is good on the pc 비서 구하기가 너무 어려워. 특히 pc 잘 하는 사람은.
Arthur: I hear you. 그렇군.
Andy: And she has a pleasant voice when she answers the telephone. 그리고 전화 받는 목소리도 쾌활해.
Arthur: How do you know that? 그걸 어떻게 알아?
Andy: I tested her. I called in this morning acting like I was a customer. 시험을 해봤지. 아침에 고객인 척하고 전화를 걸어봤어.

기억할만한 표현

▶how is (so) working out?: (누가) 잘 하고 있어? 잘 되고 있어? 
"How is college working out for you Elliot?" (엘리엇 대학 생활은 잘 되고 있어?)
▶That's what I want to hear: 그것 참 듣던 중 반가운 소리다. 
A: " I wish these games and start reading more." B: "That's great. That's what I want to hear.
▶I hear you: 알겠어. 그렇군. 
A: "I wish these gas prices would come down." B: "I hear you. I know what you mean." (알겠어. 네 말이 무슨 뜻인지.)

Fit to be tied; 몹시 화가 나다
(Sheila is talking to her friend Yvette. Sheila가 친구 Yvette과 이야기를 하며)
Sheila: Have you talked to Danielle lately? 최근에 Danielle하고 얘기한 적 있어?
Yvette: Not for a few days. Why? 며칠 사이에는 없는데 왜?
Sheila: She's fit to be tied about something. I thought you might know why. 
Danielle이 뭔가에 단단히 화가 났어. 넌 왜 그런지 알 것 같아서.
Yvette: I have no clue. 전혀 모르겠는데.
Sheila: Well I've had it with her attitude. 있잖아 난 Danielle의 태도에 질렸거든.
Yvette: Then don't talk to her. 그럼 말 섞지 마.
Sheila: But we've been friends for a long time. 그래도 얼마나 오랫동안 알고 지낸 친군데.
Yvette: Then tell her how you feel. 그럼 네 기분을 얘기해.
Sheila: I suppose you're right 네 말이 맞는 것 같다.
Yvette: I'm sure that it will give you peace of mind. 그렇게 하면 네 마음이 편할 거야.

기억할만한 표현

▶have no clue: 전혀 모르다. 
“He has no clue about how to get to the restaurant.” (그 식당에 어떻게 가는 지 그 사람은 전혀 몰라.) 
▶have had it (with so, st): 질리다.
“I’ve just about had it with my car.” (내 차는 이제 질려.)
▶peace of mind: 평온한 마음.
“It’s been a long time since I’ve had peace of mind.” (마음 편했던 게 언제 인가 싶어.)

Follow (st); (무엇을) 주시하다, 지켜보다
(Jason is talking to his classmate Min Su)
Jason: Did you follow the world cup? 월드컵 계속 봤어?
Min Su: No I didn't. 아니 안 봤어.
Jason: Why not? 왜?
Min Su: Soccer is not my game. 축구는 내 취향 아니야.
Jason: Oh what sport do you like? 아 그런 스포츠 어떤 거 좋아해?
Min Su: I like baseball. And you? 난 야구 좋아해. 너는?
Jason: I like soccer. I play every weekend. 난 축구 좋아해. 주말마다 경기 해.
Min Su: Where do you play? 경기 어디서 해?
Jason: A bunch of us play at University Park. It's not far from here. 우리 그룹은 유니버서티 팍에서 경기 해. 여기서 안 멀어.
Min Su: I get together with friends and we play baseball at City Park. 난 친구들과 모이는데 우린 시티 팍에서 야구 해.

기억할만한 표현

▶(a sport) is not (one’s) game: (어떤 스포츠를) 하지 않다, 좋아하지 않다.
“Golf is not my game. I love basketball.” (골프는 내 취향이 아니야. 난 농구 좋아해.)
▶a bunch of…: 한 송이(다발, 꾸러미)
“I bought a bunch of bananas at the market today.” (오늘 마켓에서 바나나 한 송이 샀어.)
▶get together (with): 모이다.
“We should all get together and have a picnic some time.” (우리 언제 모두 같이 피크닉을 가야지.)

Follow in one's footsteps; ~의 자취를 쫓다, ~의 뒤를 잇다
(Two college friends who haven't seen each other in many years are having coffee)
Mark: So you became a lawyer? 그래 너 변호사가 됐구나?
David: Yes. Just like my father. 응. 우리 아빠처럼.
Mark: So you followed in your father's footsteps. 아버지 뒤를 이은 거네.
David: Yes. But I didn't like studying law at first. 응. 하지만 처음엔 법률 공부하는 게 싫었어.
Mark: What changed your mind? 그런데 왜 마음을 바꿨어?
David: I just thought about the good I can do. How about you? 법률로 할 수 있는 좋은 일을 생각해봤지. 너는?
Mark: Architecture. 설계.
David: You always loved drawing houses and buildings. 넌 항상 집들하고 건물들 그리는 걸 좋아했었지.
Mark: Yes I did. 맞아 그랬어.
David: We should get together more often. Here's my cell number. What's yours? 자주 만나자. 이게 내 핸드폰번호야. 너는?

기억할만한 표현

▶at first: 처음에는 
"At first I didn't like Los Angeles but now I do." (처음엔 LA를 좋아하지 않았지만 지금은 아니야.)
▶change (one's) mind: 마음을 달리 먹다 
"I was going to buy a cycle but I changed my mind and bought a car."
▶The good (one) can do: (남을 위한) 좋은 일 
"I wanted to become a nurse because of the good I can do." (저는 남들을 위해 일하고 싶어서 간호사가 됐습니다.)



Fool around with (st); (무엇을) 엉터리로 하다
(Rory and Len are having a discussion at work)
Rory: Did you know that the state of California is in the red again? 캘리포니아주가 또 재정 적자인 거 알아?
Len: So is every other state in the country. 미국의 다른 주들도 모두 그래.
Rory: Why is it so hard to balance the budget? 예산 균형 맞추는 게 왜 그렇게 어려워?
Len: I'll bet we could do it. 우리가 해도 하겠다.
Rory: It would be fun to have a hundred billion dollars to fool around with wouldn't it? 돈을 흥청망청하면 쓰면 재미있을 거야?
Len: My wife would go through it in three hours. 우리 집사람은 3시간이면 다 써버릴 거야. 
Rory: I know what you mean. 무슨 말인지 알아.
Len: But seriously the government has got to do something. The situation is getting out of hand.
근데 정말로 주정부가 뭔가를 해야 돼. 상황이 손 쓸 수 없게 되고 있어.
Rory: What do you think will happen? 어떻게 될 것 같아?
Len: We'll have to pay the debt as always. 언제나 그랬듯 적자는 우리가 페이 하겠지.

기억할만한 표현

▶be in the red: 적자가 나다.
"Our company was in the red all last year." (우리 회사는 작년 내내 적자였다.)
▶go through (st): (무엇을) 모두 써버리다.
"Terry went through all this food so he's at the grocery store now." (여기 음식을 다 해치우더니 지금 식료품점에 갔어.)
▶get out of hand: 손을 쓸 수 없게 되다.
"Pull the garden weeds before they get out of hand." (손을 쓸 수 없기 전에 정원의 잡초를 뽑으세요.)























일반동사(G)
Get a bite; 어디 가서 뭣 좀 먹죠
(James and his son Sean are cleaning the garage.)
James: We've been at this for three hours now. 우리 세 시간 째 청소하고 있는 거야.
Sean: Do you want to take a break? 좀 쉬실래요?
James: That's what I was thinking. 내 생각이 그 생각이야.
Sean: I could go for something to eat.  뭣 좀 먹었으면 좋겠어요.
James: There's nothing in the refrigerator. Mom and I are going shopping later. 냉장고에 아무 것도 없어. 장 보려고. 
Sean: Then let's go get a bite somewhere. 그럼 어디 가서 뭣 좀 먹어요.
James: What do you want to eat? 뭐 먹고 싶니?
Sean: Hamburger and fries. 햄버거하고 감자튀김.
James: Okay. Let's wash up. 좋다. 세수하자.
Sean: Okay! 예!

기억할만한 표현

▶(one) has been at it [this] for [since] (a specific time): (언제부터) 줄곧 (무엇을) 하다.
“She’s been practicing piano all day. She’s been at it since nine o’clock this morning.” 
▶(one) could go for (st): (무엇을) 하고 싶다.
“I could go for a vacation in Hawaii.” (휴가 때 하와이 가고 싶어.)
▶wash up: 세수하다.
“I’m going to wash up, then we can go to the movies.” (나 세수 좀 할 테니 그리고 우리 영화 보러 가자.)

Get a good deal; 싸게 사다
(Don and Charlie are getting ready to bowl)
Don: Hey we finally bought a house. 어이 우리 드디어 집 샀어.
Charlie: That's terrific. Where? 잘 됐다. 어디에?
Don: It's in the same neighborhood. 같은 동네야.
Charlie: When are you moving in? 언제 이사할 건데?
Don: We're planning to move in on the 23rd. 23일에 이사할 계획이야.
Charlie: I'll give you a hand if you need it. 필요하면 내가 도와줄게.
Don: I might take you up on that. 도와달라고 부탁할 지도 모르겠다.
Charlie: Give me a call. I'll be happy to help. 전화해. 기꺼이 도울게.
Don: Thanks. We got a good deal too. 고마워. 집 싸게 샀어.
Charlie: That's great. 잘 됐다.

기억할만한 표현

▶move in: 이사하다.
“I moved in my new apartment last week.” (지난 주에 새 아파트로 이사했어.)
▶give (one) a hand: (누구를) 돕다.
“He gave me a hand washing my car.” (그 사람이 차 닦는 거 도와줬어.)
▶take (one) up on (st): (누구의) 초대나 제의에 응하다.
“She took me up on taking her to lunch.” (내가 점심을 사겠다고 했더니 그녀가 응했어.)

Get after (so) to do (st) ~에게 ~하도록 조르다
(Diana is talking to her friend Esther)
Diana: Would you like more coffee? 커피 더 마실래?
Esther: Yes please. I thought you were going to paint your house. 그래.난 네가 집 페인트칠 하는 줄 알았어.
Diana: I've been getting after Eric to paint it but he keeps putting it off. Eric더러 좀 하라고 졸라도 계속 미루고 있어.
Esther: It's the same with John. When I ask him to fix something around the house he zones out.
존도 마찬가지야. 집에 뭣 좀 고쳐달라고 해도 금방 잊어버리고 말아.
Diana: Yes Eric does the same.  맞아 그도 똑같아.
Esther: If the TV were broken he'd fix it in a minute. He has to watch his sports. TV가 고장 나면 금방 고쳐. 중계를 봐야 해.
Diana: It sounds like we're married to the same guy. 너랑 나랑 같은 사람과 결혼한 것 같네.
Esther: We should compare our marriage licenses. Maybe we did marry the same guy.
결혼 증명서 비교해봐야겠어. 정말 같은 사람에게 시집갔는지도 몰라.
Diana: I'm going to make a salad. Care to join me? 나 샐러드 만들 거야. 같이 할래? 
Esther: Yes that sounds good. 그래 좋은 생각이야.

기억할만한 표현

▶put it (st) off: 뒤로 미루다 
"I have to put off the party because I've got a bad cold." (심한 감기에 걸려 파티를 뒤로 미뤄야겠어요.)
▶it's (or it was) the same with (so): ~와 똑같네요 마찬가지군요
A: "My mother liked to talk on the phone a lot." B: "It was the same with my mother." (우리 어머니도 마찬 가지셨어.)

Get a kick out of (st); ~을 하는 재미에 빠지다
(Laura is talking to her daughter Kate)
Kate: My English class is so hard. 영어 수업 너무 힘들어.
Laura: I've never heard you say that before. 전에는 통 그런 말 안 하더니.
Kate: Well I don't get a kick out of writing every day 그게…매일 글을 써야 하는데 재미를 못 느끼겠어. 
Laura: Are you telling me you have your hands full in one of your classes? 정신 못 차리게 바쁜 수업이 하나 생겼다는 말로 들리는데?
Kate: I can tell you're enjoying this. 엄마는 이게 재미있는 거지.
Laura: That's not true but it's good to see you have to work on one of your classes. 그건 아니지만 1과목에 열심힌 건 좋은 거지
Kate: I don't like it. 난 싫어.
Laura: Keep in mind that's what you should do in all of your classes. 다른 과목도 모두 그렇게 해야 되는 거 명심해.
Kate: That doesn't seem like fun. 그런 거 재미 없어.
Laura: Then don't even think about going to college. 그럼 대학 갈 생각은 애초에 하지 마라.

기억할만한 표현

▶have your hands full: 정신 없이 바쁘다.
"Mary had her hands full raising three boys by herself." (메리는 아들 셋을 키우느라 정신 없이 바빴어요.)
▶work on (st): 열심히 ~하다. 
"Sam worked on his golf game all summer." (샘은 여름 내내 골프 경기에 열심이었어.)
▶keep in mind: 염두에 두다. 기억하다.
"Are you keeping in mind the things you have to do before you go to the movie?" (극장 가기 전에 할 일 잊지 않았지)


Get a life; 인생을 좀 즐겨
(Ken is talking to his friend Cathy)
Ken: Did you hear that someone won the $20 million lottery? 어떤 사람이 2천만 불짜리 복권에 당첨됐다는 말 들었어?
Cathy: Somebody lucked out. 누군지 운이 좋네.
Ken: What would you do if you won the lottery? 넌 복권 되면 뭐 할 거야?
Cathy: I know what I wouldn't do. I’dn't spend it. I'd put it in the bank. 뭐를 안 할지는 알아. 당첨금 안 쓰고. 저축할 거야.
Ken: Get a life! I'd have a good time. Buy things and travel. 즐기며 살아라! 난 즐겁게 살 거야. 물건도 사고 여행도 하고.
Cathy: Use your head! If you spent money like that it would be gone in no time. 머리를 써! 그리 쓰다가는 순식간에 없어져.
Ken: No no! I'd save some but my first thought is to have a good time. 아니 나도 돈을 아끼겠지만 우선 즐기자는 거지. 
Cathy: I would want my money to last for the rest of my life. 그 돈으로 평생을 썼으면 하는 거야. 
Ken: What good would that be if you don't have any fun? 재미가 하나도 없으면 그게 뭐가 좋아?
Cathy: Oh I'd have fun. I'd just be careful about how much fun I'd have. 나도 즐길 거야. 얼마나 즐기느냐를 조심하는 거지.

기억할만한 표현

▶luck out: 운이 좋다.
“She always lucks out and gets the best looking guy.” (그녀는 항상 운이 좋아서 제일 잘 생긴 남자만 만나
▶use (one’s) head: 머리를 쓰다.
“If you don’t use your head, you’ll get into a lot of trouble.” (머리를 안 쓰면 문제가 많이 생길 거야.)
▶in no time: 잽싸게. 순식간에.
“I can’t believe it. The ice cream was gone in no time.” (이럴 수가. 아이스크림이 순식간에 없어졌어.)

Get a ride (with so); (누구의) 차를 함께 타다
(Teachers are planning a school picnic for their students)
Jim: All right who's going to buy the hamburgers and hot dogs. 자 햄버거와 핫도그는 누가 사 올래요.
Ken: I'll do it. I did it last time. 제가 하죠. 지난번에도 제가 했으니까.
David: I'll get the charcoal for the barbecue. 저는 바비큐 할 때 쓸 숯을 가져올게요. 
Nancy: Don't forget the matches like you did at the last picnic. 지난번 피크닉 때처럼 성냥 가져오는 거 잊지 마세요.
David: I won't. 안 잊어버려요.
Katherine: Who's bringing the drinks? 음료수는 누가 가져오죠?
Jim: I'll be in charge of that. I'll bring ice too. 그건 제가 맡을게요. 얼음도 같이요. 
Roger: I'll make sure all the students driving get maps to the park. 운전하는 학생들이 공원 가는 지도를 챙기는 건 제가 할게. 
Terry: Katherine can I get a ride with you. I don't have a car. 차 좀 같이 타고 갈 수 있어요. 차가 없어서요.
Katherine: Sure. 물론이죠.

기억할만한 표현

▶(the) last time: 1)지난 번에 2) 마지막
1) “The last time I saw you was about two years ago.” (지난번 당신을 본 게 2년 전쯤이네요.) 
2) “This is the last time I’m going to eat at this restaurant.” (이 식당에서 식사하는 건 이번이 마지막입니다.)
▶(one) is in charge (of st): (누가 무엇을) 맡다, 책임지다. 
“She’s in charge of buying all the supplies we need in the office.” (사무용품구매는 그녀가 맡고 있습니다.)
▶make sure: 확실히 하다. 
“Make sure you close the windows before you go out. It’s going to rain.” (외출 전에 창문 꼭 닫아요. 비가 올 것 같아.)

Get around to (doing st); (무엇을 할) 시간을 내다, 여유가 생기다
(Susan is taking to her husband Jerry)
Susan: Jerry the garage is really getting messy. 여보 차고가 정말 엉망이야.
Jerry: I know. 알아.
Susan: When are you going to get around to cleaning it up? 차고는 언제 시간 내서 청소할 거야.
Jerry: You know how busy I've been lately. 내가 요즘 얼마나 바쁜지 알잖아.
Susan: The garage looks like a bomb hit it. 차고가 꼭 폭탄 맞은 것 같단 말이야.
Jerry: Come on it's not that bad. 그만 좀 해. 그 정도로 엉망은 아니야.
Susan: I'm afraid to open the door and let the neighbors see it. 이웃사람들이 볼까 봐 차고 문을 못 열겠어.
Jerry: I'll clean it up next weekend. Maybe your kid brother can help me out. 다음 주말에 치울게. 처남이 도와줄 수 있지 않을까.
Susan: He won't do anything unless gets paid.  돈 안 주면 아무 것도 안 할 텐데.
Jerry: Tell him I'll pay him ten dollars an hour. 시간당 10달러 준다고 해.

기억할만한 표현

▶A room (or area) looks like a bomb hit it: 방이 폭탄 맞은 것처럼 엉망이다.
"My son's room always looks like a bomb hit it."(우리 아들 방은 항상 폭탄 맞은 것처럼 지저분해.)
▶It's not that bad: 그렇게 나쁘진 않아.
"Your haircut looks okay. It's not that bad."(네 머리 깎은 것 괜찮아. 그렇게 나쁘지 않아.)
▶kid brother (sister): 처남(처제)
"My kid sister wants to go to the movies with us."(처제가 우리랑 같이 영화 보러 갚고 싶대.)

Get away from it all; 다 두고 떠나다(여행, 휴가 등)
(Chuck is having breakfast with his son Keith)
Keith: Dad you look terrible. 아빠 안색이 안 좋으세요.
Chuck: I'm very tired. 아주 피곤해.
Keith: But you just got up. 하지만 지금 일어나셨잖아요.
Chuck: I haven't been sleeping very well lately. 요즘 잠을 잘 못 잤거든.
Keith: What's keeping you up? 왜요?
Chuck: I've got a lot on my mind. 생각할 게 많아서 그래.
Keith: You worry too much. 아빤 너무 걱정을 많이 하세요.
Chuck: What should I do about it? 그럼 어떡하니?
Keith: You need to get away from it all. 다 좀 뒤로 하고 여행이라도 가세요.
Chuck: You talked me into it. Let's go fishing for a few days. 네 말 정말 효과가 있다. 며칠 후에 우리 낚시하러 가자. 

기억할만한 표현

▶keep (one)up: ~가 잠을 못 자다
"The baby kept us up all night."(아기 때문에 우린 밤새 못 잤습니다.)
▶have a lot on (one's) mind: 걱정거리가 많다
"His fifteen year old daughter is pregnant, so he has a lot on his mind."
▶talk (one) into (st): ~를 ~하도록 설득하다.
"My wife can talk me into doing anything."(우리 아내는 나에게 무엇이라도 설득 시킬 수가 있죠.)


Get (so) in; (누가) 안에 들어가 일을 보다(I)
Elvis: I don’t have an appointment. Can you get me in? 예약을 안 했는데 머리를 깎을 수 있을까요? 
Receptionist: No problem. Anthony is available. 물론이죠. Anthony가 손이 비네요.
Anthony: Hi, my name is Anthony. Have a seat. 안녕하세요. Anthony라고 합니다. 앉으세요.
Elvis: Nice to meet you. My name is Elvis. I’m lucky to find you available. 반가워요. Elvis입니다. 손이 빈다니 운이 좋죠.
Anthony: Yeah, you are. My appointment didn’t show up. What would you like?
예, 운이 좋으시네요. 예약손님이 안 오셨어요. 머리 어떻게 깎아 드릴까요?
Elvis: I’ll have a trim, please. 다듬어 주시면 되요.
Anthony: You have a nice thick head of hair. 머리 숱이 아주 많아요.
Elvis: Thanks, but it’s starting to turn gray. 감사합니다. 근데 머리가 세기 시작했어요.
Anthony: It happens to all of us sooner or later. 우리 모두 언젠가는 머리가 세죠.
Elvis: I’ll be happy as long as I can keep it. 머리가 빠지지만 않으면 괜찮죠.

기억할만한 표현

▶show up: (약속한 곳에) 오다, 나타나다. 
“I was sleeping when Derrick finally showed up.” (결국 데릭은 내가 자고 있을 때 나타났습니다.)
▶sooner or later: 언젠가는, 조만간. 
“he is bound to find out sooner or later.” (조만간 그가 알게 되어 있습니다.)
▶as long as: ~하기만 하면. “
You can go as long as you’re home for dinner.” (집에 와서 저녁만 먹는다면 가도 좋아)

Get (so) in; (누구를) 들어오게 하다(II)
(Megan is taking her daughter to school)
Laurie: Mom my tooth is killing me. 엄마 이가 아파 죽겠어요.
Megan: Oh no! How bad is it? 아니 이런! 얼마나 아픈데?
Laurie: It hurts a lot. I want to scream. 많이 아파요. 비명이 나올 정도로.
Megan: Is it too bad to go to school? 학교에 못 갈 정도로 아프니?
Laurie: I don't know. The pain is starting to go away now. 모르겠어요. 이제 통증이 가라앉기 시작해요. 
Megan: Why don't you see if you can get through school and I'll see if the dentist can get you in after school.
학교 수업을 끝낼 수 있으면 그렇게 하는 게 어떠니. 학교 마친 다음에 의사 진료를 받을 수 있나 알아볼게.
Laurie: I'll try. But what do I do if it starts hurting again? 그렇게 할게요. 한데 통증이 다시 오면 어떡해요?
Megan: I have a pain pill. Take half of it if it really hurts. 엄마한테 진통제 있어. 진짜 아프면 반 알만 먹어.
Laurie: Okay but I hope I don't need it. 알았어요. 그래도 진통제 안 먹었으면 좋겠어요.
Megan: Me too. And I hope I can make an appointment with the dentist. 나도. 의사와 진료약속을 받아야 할 텐데.

오늘의 생활영어 

▶(st) is killing (so): (어디가) 아파 죽겠다. 
"My back has been killing me all day." (하루 종일 등이 아파 죽겠어.)
▶go away: 사라지다. 없어지다.
"Has your headache gone away yet?" (이제 두통이 없어졌어?)
▶get through (st): (무엇을) 끝내다. 
"I had a headache but I managed to get through dinner." (두통이 있었지만 참고 저녁 식사를 끝냈어요.)

Get back into (st); 다시 (무엇을) 하다(I)
(Andy is driving Erica home after their lunch date Andy가 점심 데이트를 하고 Erica를 집에 까지 태워다 주며)
Erica: Are you asking me for another date? pizza at your place? 데이트신청을 하는 건가요? Andy씨 집에서 피자 먹는? 
Andy: How did you guess? 어떤 것 같아요?
Erica: You know I just broke up with someone. 있잖아요. 전 얼마 전에 사귀던 사람과 헤어졌어요.
Andy: Yes you told me. 예 얘기했어요.
Erica: I don't want to get back into a new relationship so soon. 이렇게 빨리 다시 연애하고 싶지 않아요.
Andy: I understand. 이해해요.
Erica: Maybe we can see each other now and then.  가끔 만날 수는 있겠지만.
Andy: I'm okay with that. 그러시다면 저도 좋습니다.
Erica: I just don't want to move too fast. 그냥 급하게 서두르고 싶지 않아서요.
Andy: Believe me I understand. 정말이에요 이해해요.

기억할만한 표현
 
▶now and then: 가끔. 
"Now and then I like to smoke a cigar." (난 가끔 cigar를 펴.)
▶is okay with that: 좋아요. 
Jim: "I need you to work on Saturdays sometimes." Roger: "I'm okay with that." (난 좋아.)
▶move too fast: (남녀관계에서) 서두르다. 
"I like him but he's moving too fast. We met two weeks ago and already he wants to live with me." 

Get back into (st); 다시 시작하자(II)
(Katherine is talking to Roger at work)
Katherine: Did you go to Marilyn's art exhibit? Marilyn의 전시회엔 갔었어?
Roger: Yes it was wonderful. 응 아주 멋졌지.
Katherine: You liked her paintings? 그림들이 좋았어?
Roger: Yes. Her work is inspiring. 응. 작품들이 감동적이야.
Katherine: You used to paint didn't you? 당신도 예전에 그림 그리지 않았어?
Roger: Yes but I stopped. 응 하지만 그만 뒀어.
Katherine: And how do you feel about seeing Marilyn's work? Marilyn 작품을 보는 기분은 어땠어?
Roger: I want to get back into painting again. 다시 그림 그리고 싶어졌어.
Katherine: Now you're talking. 이제 진심을 얘기하네.
Roger: Doing creative work lifts my spirits. 창조적인 일을 하면 기운이 나. 기억할만한 표현

기억할만한 표현

▶(one) used to (do st): 예전에 ~를 하곤 했다
"I used to live in San Francisco." (저는 예전에 샌프란시스코에 살았었죠.)
▶now you're talking: 이제야 말이 좀 되네요 이제야 진짜 얘기가 시작되네요
A: "I think I'm going to start playing the guitar again." B: "Now you're talking." (이제야 제대로 얘길 하는 구만.)
▶(so, st) lifts (one's) spirits: 기운 나게 하다
"Exercising lifts my spirits." (운동을 하면 전 기운이 납니다.)


Get back to (st); 다시 시작하다(III)
(Todd comes home with a package under his arm and he's greeted by his wife)
Sheila: Honey what did you buy? 여보 뭘 산 거야?
Todd: (pulls a box from a paper bag) I bought something that will change my life. 내 인생을 바꿔놓을 것을 샀지.
Sheila: It better be a box of money. 돈이 든 상자인가 보네.
Todd: No. I bought a pair of running shoes. 아니. 운동화를 한 켤레 샀어.
Sheila: You're going to exercise? 당신 운동할 거야?
Todd: I've decided to get myself together. 나도 자신을 되찾기로 했어.
Sheila: And you're going to run to do it? 뛰면서 그렇게 하기로 한 거야?
Todd: Every morning. I'm going to get back to running. 매일 아침. 다시 뛰기 시작할 거야.
Sheila: Just remember you don't have to run a marathon the first day. 첫날부터 마라톤을 뛸 필요는 없다는 것만 기억해.
Todd: Don't worry. I'll break into it gradually. 정 마. 서서히 시작할 테니. 

기억할만한 표현 

▶change (one's) life: 인생을 바꾸다
"He's a lot happier since he changed his life." (그는 인생을 바꾼 뒤부터 훨씬 행복해합니다.)
▶get (oneself) together: 침착을 찾다 자신의 모습을 더 찾다 
"After his wife died it took him a year to get himself together." (아내가 죽은 후 그는 일년이 걸려서야 제 모습을 되찾았다.)
▶break into (st): 새로운 일을 시작하다
"I wish I hadn't broken into it so fast because I had a lot of injuries." (부상당해서 급하게 그것를 시작하지 말 걸.)

Get back into (st); ~에 다시 흥미를 갖다, ~를 다시 시작하다(IV)
(Shawn is having dinner with his wife Hannah)
Hannah: Gary called. He wants to play golf with you. Gary가 전화했어. 당신하고 골프 치고 싶대.
Shawn: I wish I could but I haven't been playing. 그러고 싶지만 한동안 안쳐서.
Hannah: I told him you would. 그럴 거라고 했는데.
Shawn: You're pulling my leg. 농담이지.
Hannah: You told me you want to get back into it. 다시 시작할 거라고 나한테 그랬잖아.
Shawn: But I'm out of practice. 하지만 실력이 다 녹슬었는데.
Hannah: You have to start some time. 언젠가는 시작해야 할 일이잖아.
Shawn: I'm going to call him and back out of it. 내가 전화해서 안 한다고 그래야지.
Hannah: I wish you wouldn't. I know you love to play and you need to get outside and do something to exercise.
해나: 그러지 않았으면 좋겠어. 당신이 좋아하는 걸 내가 알고 게다가 당신도 밖에 나가서 운동을 좀 해야지.
Shawn: I know you're right. I guess I need you to push me. 네 말이 맞는 것 알아. 당신이 나한테 억지로 시켜야 하는 군.
Hannah: You'll be happy that I pushed you to play. 내가 등 떠밀어서 다시 골프를 치면 당신도 좋아하게 될 거야.

기억할만한 표현

▶pull (so's) leg: 농담하다 놀리다
"She always pulls my leg and I believe her every time." (그녀는 항상 장난을 치고 저는 매번 속아넘어갑니다.)
▶back out of (st): 약속을 취소하다 철회하다
"He backed out of buying our house because he couldn't get a loan." (융자를 받지 못해서 우리 집 사는 것을 관뒀어.)


Get back to (doing st); (~을) 다시 하다(I)
Rose: So what are you going to do after you retire? 그래서 은퇴하면 뭐 할 거야?
Joe: Oh I think we should travel. See the world. 아 여행을 해야 하지 않을까? 세상 구경 말이야.
Rose: I'm for that! 나도 좋아!
Joe: And I want to focus on my gardening. 그리고 정원 가꾸는 일도 본격적으로 하고 싶어. 
Rose: Anything else? 다른 거 또 있어?
Joe: Yes. I want to get back to playing the piano. 응. 피아노도 다시 치고 싶어.
Rose: You're going to be as busy in retirement as you were working. 은퇴해도 일할 때 못지 않게 바쁘겠네.
Joe: Yes but I'll be doing what I want to do. 그렇지만 내가 하고 싶은 걸 하는 거지.
Rose: And when you want to do it. 그리고 하고 싶을 때 하는 거고. 
Joe: You got that right!  그렇지!

기억할만한 표현

▶I’m for that: 내가 바라던 바야. 나도 같은 생각이야. 
Jim: “Let’s stop working and get some lunch.” (일은 그만 하고 점심 좀 먹자.) Roger: “I’m for that.” (그거 좋지.)
▶focus on (st): 집중하다. 중점을 두다.
“Today we will focus on Italian architecture.” (오늘은 이태리 건축에 중점을 두겠어요.)
▶You got that right: 맞아. 바로 맞췄네.
Jim: “You’re going fishing this weekend?” (이번 주말에 낚시 갈 거야?) Roger: “You got that right.” (바로 맞췄네.)

Get back to reality; 현실로 돌아오다(II)
(Marge walks into Paul's office but Paul doesn't notice her. 
Marge가 Paul의 사무실로 들어오는데 Paul 은 모른다) 
Marge: You're sure deep in thought. 뭘 그렇게 골똘히 생각해.
Paul: Huh? Oh! Sorry. I guess I was daydreaming. 응? 아! 미안. 공상에 빠졌었나 봐.
Marge: What about? 무슨 공상?
Paul: I was looking back on my high school days. 고등학교 때 생각하고 있었어.
Marge: Are you feeling old? 나이든 거 같아서 그래?
Paul: No. I’m just wondering about a time when I wasn't under a lot of pressure. 압박감이 없던 시절을 생각하던 중이야.
Marge: Well it's time to get back to reality. 있잖아 이제 현실로 돌아올 시간이야.
Paul: Why? I was very happy. 왜? 기분이 아주 좋았는데.
Marge: The boss wants to see you in his office. 위에서 보자는데. 방으로 오래.
Paul: That doesn't make me happy. 그건 기분 별로 네.

기억할만한 표현

▶deep in thought: 골똘히 생각에 잠겨
“Terry seemed so deep in thought, so I didn’t say anything to him.” (Terry가 생각에 잠긴 것 같아서 아무 말도 안 했어.)
▶look back on (a day): 옛 생각을 하다.
“When I look back on my life, I’m very satisfied.” (옛날 살던 생각을 하니 기분이 아주 흡족해.)
▶under pressure: 압박감 속에서.
“He performs better when he’s under pressure.” (그 사람은 압박감을 느낄 때 일을 더 잘 해.)


Get by; 필요한 만큼 갖고 있다
(Don is greeted by his wife when he arrives at home)
Linda: Hi honey. Did you pick up the dry cleaning? 당신 왔어. 드라이 클리닝 맡긴 거 찾았어?
Don: It completely slipped my mind. 까맣게 까먹었네.
Linda: You still have time to get it. 아직 찾아올 시간 있잖아.
Don: Can't you get by until tomorrow? 내일까지는 입을 옷 충분하지 않아?
Linda: I need it for the party tonight. You did remember the party didn't you? 오늘밤 파티에 그 옷이 필요해. 파티 기억나지 그렇지?
Don: Of course but I thought it was casual. 물론이지. 한데 평상복 파티인 줄 알았는데.
Linda: It is and what I want to wear is at the cleaners. 맞아. 그리고 세탁소에 있는 게 내가 입으려는 거야. 
Don: So I can't talk you out of it? 그럼 내가 뭐라고 해도 안 듣겠네?
Linda: No you can't. 그럼 얘기해도 소용없어.
Don: Okay. I'll be back soon. 알았어. 금방 다녀올게.

기억할만한 표현

▶pick up (so, st): (물건을) 찾다, 가져오다. (사람을) 차로 데려오다. 
“I picked up some rice at the supermarket.” (수퍼 마켓에서 쌀 좀 사올게.)
▶slip (one’s) mind: (할 일을) 깜박하다.
“My appointment to see my doctor slipped my mind.” (의사와 진료 약속을 잊어버렸어.)
▶talk (one) out of it (or doing st): (누구를) 설득해서 못 하게 하다.
“I talked him out of buying that car.” (그 사람에게 잘 얘기해서 그 차 못 사게 했어.)

Get cold feet; 겁을 내다
(Anthony walks into a restaurant and sees Justin sitting in a booth)
Anthony: Sorry I'm late. Been waiting long? 미안 늦었어. 오래 기다렸어?
Justin: No. I just sat down. 아니야. 나도 방금 자리에 앉았어.
Anthony: Good. My final travel plans came through today. 다행이다. 최종 여행 계획이 오늘 나왔어.
Justin: It took long enough. Do you have your passport? 걸릴 만큼 걸렸네. 여권은 있어?
Anthony: Yeah. My passport and visa. Everything has finally fallen into place.여권 비자다. 드디어 모든 게 제대로 됐어.
Justin: When do you leave? 언제 떠나는 거야?
Anthony: A week from tomorrow. Now reality is setting in. 내일로부터 1주일 뒤에. 이제야 실감이 나.
Justin: Don't tell me you're getting nervous. 떨리는 건 아니지.
Anthony: A little bit. I've never been out of the country before. 조금 떨려. 한 번도 외국에 나간 적이 없거든.
Justin: I hope you don't get cold feet. 겁 먹지 않아도 돼.
Anthony: Don't worry about that. I'm nervous not frightened. 그런 걱정은 하지마. 떨리는 거지 겁나는 건 아니야.

기억할만한 표현
▶come through: (기다리던 것이) 나오다. 승인을 받다. 
"I hope my social security will come through this month." (social security 카드가 이번 달에 나왔으면 좋겠다.)
▶fall into place: 앞뒤가 맞다. 제대로 맞물려 돌아가다.
"Things are falling into place for the new president." (신임 회장에 유리하게 일들이 제대로 맞물려 돌아가고 있어요.)
▶(st) is setting in: (무엇이) 시작되다. 
"The fact that I got married has set in." (결혼했다는 사실이 실감나기 시작했어요.)


Get in; ~에 도착하다
(Anne is talking to her husband Steven as she makes breakfast)
Anne: I didn't hear you come in last night. What time did you get in? 어제 당신 오는 소리를 못 들었어. 몇 시에 왔어?
Steven: At 1 A.M. I didn't want to wake you up.  1시. 당신 깨우지 않으려고 했지.
Anne: Oh you should have. I would have warmed up dinner for you. 깨우지 그랬어. 저녁 식사 데워줄 수 있었을 텐데.
Steven: You were sound asleep. I heated dinner in the microwave. 깊이 잠에 빠져있었어. 저녁은 내가 전자 레인지에 데워 먹었어.
Anne: Did you like it? 맛있었어?
Steven: Yes. I love your way of making chicken. 그럼. 당신이 만드는 닭고기가 얼마나 맛있는데.
Anne: Well it's my mother's recipe. She taught me. 우리 엄마 요리법이야. 엄마가 가르쳐주신 거야.
Steven: I don't like coming home so late from work. 늦게 퇴근하는 것 정말 싫어.
Anne: This time of year is always busy for your company. 당신 회사는 매년 이맘때가 바쁘잖아.

기억할만한 표현 

▶warm up (st): ~를 데우다 
"Your coffee has gotten cool. I'll warm it up in the microwave." (커피가 삭었네요. 제가 M/W에다 데워요.)
▶sound asleep: 깊이 잠들다 
"The baby was sound asleep all night." (아기는 밤새 깊이 잠을 잘 잤어요.)
▶ (one's) way of (doing st): ~가 ~하는 방법 
"I love her way of dancing. She's very different." (전 그 여자가 춤추는 스타일이 좋아요. 그녀는 아주 다르죠.)

Get in late; 밤늦게 (혹은 새벽에) 오다
(Jim is talking to Roger at work. 짐이 직장에서 Roger와 이야기를 나눈다)
Jim: You look beat this morning. 오늘 아침에 유난히 피곤해 보인다.
Roger: I am. 맞아.
Jim: What did you do last night? 지난 밤에 뭐했는데?
Roger: I was helping a friend move into a new apartment. 친구가 새 아파트로 이사하는 거 도와줬어.
Jim: That can be back-breaking work. 등골 휘는 일이었겠다.
Roger: It was. I got in late last night. 그랬어. 지난 밤 늦게 돌아왔으니까.
Jim: Did your friend have a lot of things to move? 친구 이삿짐이 많았어?
Roger: Yes. She had a lot of heavy furniture. 응. 무거운 가구가 많더라고.
Jim: Did anyone else help you? 누구 도와준 사람은 없었어?
Roger: No it was just the two of us. I may slip out early from work today. 우리 둘만이었어. 오늘 일찍 퇴근해야 할 것 같아 

기억할만한 표현

▶(one) looks beat: 아주 피곤하다. 녹초가 되다.
“You look beat today. Did you get enough sleep last night?” 오늘 무척 피곤해 보여. 지난 밤에 잘 잔 거야.)
▶back-breaking work: 등골이 휘게 일하다.
“Being a fire fighter is back-breaking work.” (소방관이 된다는 건 등골 휘는 일이야.)
▶slip out: 남들 모르게 조용히 자리를 뜨다.
“I have to get up early tomorrow, so I’m going to slip out of this party.” (일찍 일어나야 해서 여기 파티에서 살짝 빠져나갈 거야.) 



Get in on (st); (다른 사람들의 계획 등에) 함께 참여하다
(Erica and Tom are talking before Tom goes to work)
Erica: Don't forget we're getting together with Hugh and Mary tonight. 오늘 저녁 Hugh와 Mary가 만나는 것 잊지 마.
Tom: Oh I almost forgot. When is it? 아 잊어버릴 뻔 했네. 언제지?
Erica: At eight-thirty. I should have known you'd forget. 8시30분. 당신이 잊을 거라는 걸 내가 생각했어야 하는데.
Tom: I won't be home until 8:00 but we should be able to meet them. 8시 전에 못 오겠지만 시간 맞춰 나갈 수 있어 
Erica: You won't have much time to catch your breath will you? 숨돌릴 여유도 별로 없겠군 안 그래?
Tom: We're just having a drink with them aren't we? 한 잔 마시러 가는 거지 안 그래?
Erica: Not really. Mary specifically said it was a business meeting. 아니. 매리가 정확히 사업상 회의라고 했어.
Tom: No kidding. What kind of business? 말도 안돼. 무슨 사업?
Erica: She didn't say but I think they've gotten into a business. 말은 안 했지만 사업을 시작한 것 같아.
Tom: They probably want us to get in on it with them. 아마 사업에 같이 뛰어들자고 하겠군.

기억할만한 표현

▶get together: 만나다
"Let's get together for lunch tomorrow." (내일 점심 같이 먹자.)
▶catch your breath: 숨을 고르다 돌리다 잠시 쉬다
"Sit down and catch your breath because you're working too hard."(너무 일을 열심히 하니까 좀 앉아서 숨 좀 돌려.)
▶get into (st): ~에 흥미를 붙이다
"He got into yoga and lost a lot of weight." (그 사람은 요가에 흥미를 붙여 체중이 많이 줄었습니다.)

Get in the way of (st) (무엇을) 방해하다(I)
(Yvette walks into work in the morning. Yvette이 아침에 사무실로 들어오며)
Yvette: Morning! I brought donuts for everyone. 좋은 아침! 도넛 사왔으니까 다들 먹어요.
Lester: Donuts! I can't go off my diet. 도넛이라고! 다이어트 중이라 먹으면 안 되는데.
Yvette: It won't hurt you to have one. 하나쯤 먹는다고 나쁠 건 없잖아. 
Lester: My problem is that I can't stop at just one. 난 하나만 먹고 못 끝내는 게 문제야. 
Yvette: If you put your mind to it you can. 마음을 굳게 먹으면 하나로 끝낼 수 있어. 
Lester: If I had that much discipline I wouldn't need to be on a diet. 그 정도 자제력이 있으면 다이어트 할 필요도 없어.
Yvette: I don't want to get in the way of you losing weight. 살 빼는 거 방해하고 싶은 생각은 없어.
Lester: Does this mean you won't try to talk me into eating a donut? 도넛 먹으라고 설득할 생각은 없다는 말이지?
Yvette: I won't say another word about it. 그 얘기는 더 이상 하지 않을게.
Lester: Thanks. I really appreciate that. 고마워. 정말 감사해. 

기억할만한 표현

▶go off (one's) diet: 다이어트할 때 먹어서는 안 되는 음식을 먹다. 
"I went off my diet last night so I feel guilty today." (어젯밤에 diet에 먹어선 안 되는 것을 먹었더니 오늘 마음이 그래.
▶put your mind to (stg): (무엇에) 전념하다 몰두하다.
"You can do anything if you put your mind to it." (마음을 한 곳에 집중하면 뭐든 할 수 있어.)
▶talk (st) into (st): (누구를) 설득해 ~하게 하다. 
"He didn't want to come but I talked him into it." (그 사람이 안 오려고 하는 걸 내가 잘 얘기해서 오게 했어.)


Get in the way; 방해하다(II)
(Carol and Jenny are having lunch)
Carol: I've got a problem with my boss. She's always getting in the way. 상사와 문제가 있어. 항상 내 일을 방해해.
Jenny: What do you mean? 무슨 얘기야?
Carol: It seems like she's always looking over my shoulder offering suggestions or making corrections.
항상 내 일을 감시하면서 제안하거나 수정하라고 해.
Jenny: I see what you mean. 무슨 얘긴지 알겠어.
Carol: I don't like her breathing down my neck all the time. 아주 갑갑해 죽겠어.
Jenny: I guess she's just trying to be helpful. 도와주려고 그러는 거겠지.
Carol: Maybe but it sure is annoying. 그럴진 몰라도 아주 짜증나.
Jenny: Have you talked to her about it? 얘기 좀 해봤어?
Carol: No. Do you think I should? 아니. 그래야 할까?
Jenny: If you don't she'll never give you any breathing room. 안 하면 절대 너한테 여유를 주지 않을 거야.

기억할만한 표현

▶look over (one's) shoulder: 까다롭게 감시하다 
"I can't work at the computer when my wife looks over my shoulder." 
▶breathe down (one's) neck: 자세히 가까이서 감시하다 
"I can't work with you breathing down my neck." 
▶breathing room: 여유 생각할 혹은 숨쉴 공간
"I couldn't decide what to do until she gave me some breathing room

Get into the swing of (st); ~에 익숙해지다, 일의 리듬을 타다
(Andy and Bruce are at a bowling alley)
Andy: Hey Bruce there's Ray. I thought he was sick. Bruce 저기 Ray가 왔어. 아픈 줄 알았더니.
Bruce: He was in bed for at least three months.(calling out) Hey Ray! Ray는 지난 3개월 간 누워서 지냈어. (크게 부르면서) Ray!
Ray: (walking over) Hi Bruce. Hi Andy. (걸어오며) 안녕 Bruce. 잘 있었어 Andy.
Andy: You look great. How are you feeling? 좋아 보이네. 좀 어때?
Ray: Fit as a fiddle but it sure took a long time. 아주 좋아 오래 걸리긴 했지만.
Bruce: It's great to see you up and about. 일어나서 다니는 것 보니까 좋네.
Ray: Thanks. I did get a little stir crazy. 고마워. 좀이 쑤시긴 했지.
Andy: I'm sure you did. 왜 안 그랬겠어.
Bruce: When do you go back to work? 언제 직장에 복귀해?
Ray: Next week. I can't wait to get into the swings of things. 다음주. 어서 다시 원래 리듬을 찾고 싶어.

기억할만한 표현 

▶be [feel] fit as a fiddle: 아주 건강하다
"She's 75 years old but she's fit as a fiddle." (그녀는 75세지만 아주 건강합니다.)
▶up and about: (아픈 후에) 일어나 잘 걸어 다니다 다시 활동하다
"It took me six months to get up and about after the accident." (사고 후 다시 일어나 다닐 수 있을 때까지 6개월이 걸렸어.)
▶get [go, be] stir crazy: (한 곳에만 오래 박혀있어서) 좀이 쑤시다 답답해서 못 견디다
"I'm going to go stir crazy if I don't get out of this house." (이 집에서 나가지 안으면 난 쑤셔서 못 견딜 겁니다.)

Get it on (st); (다른 사람들의 계획 등에) 함께 참여하다
(Erica and Tom are talking before Tom goes to the work) 
Erica: Don't forget we're getting together with Harry and Mary tonight. 오늘 해리와 매리하고 만나기로 한 거 잊지 마. 
Tom: Oh I almost forget. When is it?  아 잊어버릴 뻔 했네. 언제지? 
Erica: At eight-thirty. I should have known you'd forget.  8시 30분이야. 당신이 잊었을 거라는 생각을 했어야 했는데. 
Tom: I won't be home until eight but we should be able to meet them. 
8시까지 집에 오진 못해도 시간에 맞춰 나갈 수 있을 거야. 
Erica: You won't have time to catch your breath will you?  숨 돌릴 시간도 없겠네 그치? 
Tom: We're just having a drink with them right?  그냥 한 잔 하려고 모이는 거지 맞지? 
Erica: Not really. Mary specifically said it is a business meeting. 아니야. 매리가 정확히 사업상 회의라고 했어.  
No kidding. What kind of business?  말도 안 돼. 무슨 사업? 
Erica: She didn't say but I think they got in on a business.  말은 안 했지만 두 사람 같이 사업 시작한 것 같아. 
Tom: They probably want us to get into it.  우리한테 같이 하자고 하겠군.

기억할만한 표현

▶get together (with so): (누구와) 만나다. 모이다.
“Let’s get together for lunch tomorrow.”(내일 점심 같이 하자.)
▶catch (one’s) breath: 숨을 돌리다. 잠시 쉬다.
“Sit down and catch your breath. You’re working too hard.”(앉아서 한 숨 돌려. 너 너무 열심히 일했잖아.)
▶get into (so): (무엇에) 흥미를 붙이다.
“He got into yoga and lost a lot of weight.”(그 사람은 요가에 흥미를 붙이더니 체중이 많이 줄었어요.)

Get moving: 서두르다(I)
(Jordan is watching TV when his wife Liz walks into the room)
Liz: I thought you were getting dressed. 난 당신이 옷 입고 있을 줄 알았어.
Jordan: I'm sorry. I got caught up in the basketball game. 미안. 농구 경기 보다가 미처 몰랐어.
Liz: This is a big deal for me. Not everyone gets invited to the boss' house. 이거 나한테 중요해. 모두 다 상사에게 초대받는 게 아냐.
Jordan: When are we supposed to be there? 언제까지 가야 하지?
Liz: In twenty minutes! 20분 후에!
Jordan: That's plenty of time. 시간 충분하네.
Liz: Well get moving. I don't want to be late. 어서 서둘러. 늦고 싶지 않아.
Jordan: I think I'll wear my new jeans. 난 청바지를 입을까 봐.
Liz: You can't be serious! 농담이겠지!
Jordan: I'm just kidding. I'll dress up for your boss. 농담이야. 당신 상사를 위해 멋지게 차려 입을게.

기억할만한 표현

▶be [get] caught up in (st): ~에 정신이 빠지다 
"I'm caught up in a very good book." (전 아주 재미있는 책 속에 푹 빠져있죠.)
▶a big deal: 아주 중요한 일이다
"To some young people their twenty-first birthday is a big deal." (어떤 사람들에게 21세 생일은 아주 큰 일이죠.)
▶dress up: 정장을 입다 차려 입다 
"You are very handsome when you are dressed up." (당신을 정장을 차려 입으면 정말 멋집니다.)

Get moving; 서두르다(II)
(Hal and Ben are in the office)
Ben: Hey Hal did you catch the baseball game last night? 핼 어제 야구 경기 봤어?
Hal: No I was working. 아니 일하고 있었어.
Ben: You missed a good one. It was sensational. 좋은 경기를 놓쳤네. 엄청났는데.
Hal: I'd like to hear about it but I've got to get moving. 듣고 싶긴 한데 내가 지금 가봐야 돼.
Ben: Why are you so busy? 왜 그렇게 바빠?
Hal: I'm going on a business trip tomorrow and I've got a lot of things to do to prepare. 내일 출장 가는데 준비할 게 많아.
Ben: That's right I forgot. How much do you have to do? 맞다 내가 잊어버렸네. 할 일이 얼마나 많아?
Hal: I'm hoping to put the finishing touches on it in time for dinner. 저녁 먹기 전까지 마무리 하려고.
Ben: Is there anything I can do to help? 내가 도울 일은 없어?
Hal: Thanks for asking but I don't think so. 물어 봐줘서 고마운데 괜찮아.
Ben: When do you come back? 자네 언제 돌아오는 거야?
Hal: In ten days. 열흘 후.
Ben: I'll see you then. Have a nice trip. 그럼 그 때 볼게. 잘 다녀 와.

기억할만한 표현

▶catch (st): ~를 보다 
“We caught a movie after we had dinner. (우리는 저녁 먹은 후 영화를 봤습니다.)
▶put the finishing touch(es) on (st): 마무리하다 
"The hat put the finishing touch on her new outfit." (모자가 그녀의 새 옷을 잘 마무리해줬습니다.)

Get not (st) in; (무엇을) 마음껏 못 하다
(Marty and his friend Ed are talking)
Marty: The summer is almost over and I didn't get much golf in. 여름도 다 끝나가는데 골프를 마음껏 못 쳤어.
Ed: What are you telling me? 무슨 말을 하려는 거야?
Marty: I've been working too hard. 일을 너무 열심히 했다고.
Ed: Are you expecting sympathy from me? 내가 위로라도 해줬으면 하는 거야?
Marty: Don't jump to conclusions. I don't expect anything from you. 지레짐작하진 말고. 아무 것도 바라는 거 없어.
Ed: Then what is your point? 그럼 무슨 말인데?
Marty: You always tell me I'm obsessive about golf.항상 말했잖아 내가 골프에 너무 빠졌다고. Ed: You've finally come to your senses. 드디어 정신을 차렸구나.
Marty: Is that all you've got to say? 그 말 밖에 할 말이 없어?
Ed: No! I'll see you around. 또 있지! 또 봐.

기억할만한 표현

▶jump to conclusions: 성급히 결론을 내리다. 
"You always jump to conclusions when your son is late getting home." (당신은 아들이 늦게 집에 오게 되면 항상 지레짐작을 해.)
▶come to one’s senses: 제 정신이 들다. 정신을 차리다. 
"When he came to his senses he went back to school." (그는 정신을 차리고 학교로 돌아갔어요.)
▶see you around: 또 봐요. 
"Well I have to go. I'll see you around." (있잖아 나 가봐야겠어. 앞으로 또 보자.)

Get (st) off one's chest; 속 시원히 털어놓다
(Hal and Gene are at work)
Hal: Well I finally had it out with John. 드디어 존과 해결을 봤어.
Gene: What about? 무슨 일을?
Hal: He's always parking in my space in the parking lot. 존이 주차장에서 항상 내 자리에 차를 세우거든.
Gene: What did you say to him? 뭐라고 했어?
Hal: I told him I had to get something off my chest. 좀 털어놓을 얘기가 있다고 말했지.
Gene: And what happened? What did he say? 그랬더니? 뭐래?
Hal: He got all bent out of shape. 막 화를 내더라고.
Gene: Did he deny it? 자기가 아니라고 부인해?
Hal: No. He just said it was no big deal. 아니. 별 것도 아닌 일이라고 그러더군.
Gene: It's good that you finally told him how you felt. 자네 마음을 드디어 얘기했으니 잘한 거야.

기억할만한 표현

▶have it out with (one): ~와 어려운 얘기 의견차이 등을 해결보다 
"I'm going to have it out with my boss if I don't get a raise." (봉급 인상이 안되면 전 사장과 얘기해 볼 겁니다.)
▶get bent out of shape: 벌컥 화내다 어쩔 줄 모르다 
"It seems she always gets bent out of shape about anything." (그녀는 아무 일에나 대고 화를 냅니다.)
▶no big deal: 별 일이 아니다 
"I know you're upset about canceling our plans but it's no big deal to me." 

Get (st) off the ground; (일을) 시작하다, 성공적으로 출발하다
(Mike and Cary are jogging in the park)
Cary: I haven't seen you running in the park lately. 요즘 공원에서 뛰는 모습을 못 본지 좀 됐어요.
Mike: I've been very busy. 아주 바빴어요.
Cary: What have you been up to? 무슨 일로요?
Mike: Well work has been busy and I've been helping my wife get a school off the ground.
일도 바빴고 아내가 학교를 시작하는 일을 돕느라고.
Cary: Oh what kind of school? 어머 어떤 학교죠?
Mike: It's a school for homeless children. 노숙자 자녀들을 위한 학교죠.
Cary: What a wonderful idea! 너무나 훌륭한 구상이군요!
Mike: Thanks. She really has her work cut out for her. 고마워요. 아내가 할 일이 많아요.
Cary: If she needs any help with anything keep me in mind. 도울 게 조금이라도 있으면 저한테도 연락주세요.
Mike: Thanks Cary. I will do that. 고마워요 캐리. 그럴게요.

기억할만한 표현

▶what has (one) been up to? : 뭐 하고 지내셨습니까?
"I haven't seen you in a while. What have you been up to?" (그 동안 못 뵌 지 좀 됐네요. 뭘 하고 지내셨나요?)
▶have (one's) work cut out for (one): 할 일이 많다
"I'm painting my house myself so I have my work cut out for me." (저는 집을 손수 페인트칠 할 거라 할 일이 아주 많아요.)
▶keep (one) in mind: (누구를) 기억하다 염두에 두다
"Keep me in mind if you need help buying a car." (차 사는데 도움이 필요하면 제 생각을 꼭 하세요.)

Get out of (st); (약속한 일을) 안 하다
(Vince and Diane are talking on the telephone)
Vince: What are you doing Saturday night? 토요일 밤에 뭐할 거야?
Diane: I promised my roommate that I'd go to the movies with her. 룸메이트하고 영화 보러 가기로 약속했어.
Vince: Can you get out of it? 빠지면 안 돼?
Diane: I'm not sure. What do you want to do? 잘 모르겠어. 뭐 하려고?
Vince: I was hoping you'd want to hang out. 같이 놀았으면 해서.
Diane: What do you want to do? 뭐하고 놀건데?
Vince: I thought we could check out that new club. 클럽이 새로 생겼는데 확인 한 번 해야지.
Diane: We're going to an early movie. We'll be out between 8 and 8:30. 영화 일찍 볼 거야. 8시에서 8:30 이면 끝나.
Vince: Do you want to hook up with me at the club? 그럼 클럽에서 만날까?
Diane: Great. I'll bring my roommate. See you Saturday night.   좋아. 룸메이트도 데려갈게. 토요일 밤에 봐.

기억할만한 표현

▶hang out: 놀다. 시간을 보내다. 
"They've been hanging out at the beach all day." (그들은 하루 종일 바닷가에서 놀았어.)
▶check out (st): 확인하다. 
"I checked out that golf course but it's too expensive." (골프장 확인했는데 너무 비싸.)
▶hook up with (so): (누구를) 만나다. 어울리다. 
"He hooked up with his friends and went to a baseball game." (그 사람은 친구들과 어울려서 야구장에 갔어.)

Get over it; 그만 잊다, 이겨내다 (I)
(Will and Albert are having a drink in a bar)
Will: You look distracted. Are you all right? 딴 데 신경 쓰는 것 같다. 괜찮아?
Albert: You see that woman at the end of the bar? 술집 저 쪽 끝에 있는 여자 보여?
Will: Yeah. Do you know her? 응. 아는 여자야?
Albert: Her name's El. I see her at work all the time but never talked to her. El이야. 직장에서는 항상 보는데 말해본 적은 없어.
Will: She's cute. Why don't you introduce yourself? 귀엽다. 네 소개를 하지 그래?
Albert: I don't have the guts. 난 배짱이 없어서.
Will: Come on! Give it a shot. What do you have to lose? 그러지 말고! 한 번 해봐. 밑져야 본전이잖아?
Albert: I have a fear of rejection. 거절당하면 어쩌나 두려워.
Will: Get over it. Go and talk to her. 극복해야지. 가서 말 걸어봐.
Albert: I'll think about it. 생각해볼게.

기억할만한 표현

▶all the time: 항상.
“She does her homework all the time, so she gets good grades.” (그 애는 항상 숙제를 하니까 성적이 좋아.)
▶have not the guts: 배짱이 있(없)다.
“She has the guts to give a speech in front of the whole class.” (그녀는 전체 학급 앞에서 연설을 할 정도로 배짱이 있어요.)
▶give it a shot (or take a shot at): 한 번 해보다. 시도하다.
“Rebecca wants to take a shot at singing on stage.” (레베카는 무대에서 한 번 노래를 불러보고 싶어해요.)


Get over it; 극복하다, (담아두지 않고) 잊어버리다 (II)
(Teresa and Sandra are talking between classes)
Teresa: That teacher is stupid! 그 선생님은 바보야!
Sandra: Get over it. She's not stupid. 이제 그만 해. 선생님은 바보가 아니야. 
Teresa: Well she doesn't know how to teach. 어쨌든 선생님은 가르치는 법을 몰라.
Sandra: Because you bombed your test she doesn't know how to teach? 네가 시험을 망쳤다고 선생님이 잘 못 가르치신다 거야?
Teresa: Yes. If she knew how to teach I wouldn't have failed my test. 그래. 가르치는 법을 알았다면 시험에서 낙제할,리 없지.
Sandra: You would have passed the test if you hit the books. 네가 열심히 공부했다면 시험을 통과했을 거야.
Teresa: I studied hard. 난 열심히 공부했어.
Sandra: Get real. You studied maybe for an hour. 말도 안돼. 넌 한 시간 정도 공부했잖아.
Teresa: How much did you study? 넌 얼마나 공부했는데?
Sandra: I studied for ten hours and I was lucky to get an A. 난 열 시간은 공부해서 가까스로 A를 받았어.

기억할만한 표현 

▶bomb (one's) test: 시험에서 낙제하다 완전히 망치다 
"He bombed his biology test." (그는 생물학 시험에서 낙제했습니다.)
▶hit the books: 공부하다
"I can't go out tonight. I have a test tomorrow and I have to hit the books." 
▶get real: (구어체) 솔직해지다 현실을 직시하다 정신차리다 
"Get real. You don't have the money to buy a car like that." 

Get over (so or st); (사람을) 잊다, (병이) 낫다
(Don greets Adam at work)
Don: Good morning Adam. 좋은 아침이야 애덤.
Adam: Hi Don. 안녕 단.
Don: You look much better today. Did you get over that upset stomach yesterday? 오늘 훨씬 좋아 보여. 배탈은 나았어?
Adam: Yes. I feel much better today. 응. 오늘은 훨씬 좋아.
Don: Yeah stay away from fast food. 응. 패스트 푸드는 멀리하라고.
Adam: That's the last time I do that. 다신 안 먹어.
Don: Fast food is a great temptation. 그게 당기긴 하지. 
Adam: But it's much better for you to make your food yourself. 하지만 음식은 직접 해 먹는 게 훨씬 좋아.
Don: That's true.  맞아.
Adam: I learned that lesson the hard way. 비싼 수업료 내고 배운 거지.

기억할만한 표현

▶stay away from: ~을 멀리하다.
“My parents told me to stay away from those guys. They always get in trouble.” (부모님이 재들 멀리하래. 문제아 잖아.)
▶That’s the last time I do that: 이젠 절대 (~을) 안 해.
“I lent my friend money and he never paid me back. That’s the last time I do that.”(돈을 꿔줬는데 안 갚아. 절대 안꿔줘)
▶learn a lesson the hard way: 비싼 대가를 치르고 배우다.
“I left my car window down and someone stole it. I learned my lesson the hard way.” (창을 열어뒀더니 훔쳐갔어. 수업료를 낸 거지.)


Get rained out; 비가 와서 중단되다
(Two friends are having a drink)
Ben: After days of cloudy rainy weather it's very nice to feel the warm sunshine.
며칠 흐리고 비가 오다가 따스한 햇살이 비치니 너무 좋다.
Gene: That is very true. I draw a lot of energy from the sun. 정말 그래. 나는 해가 나면 힘이 펄펄 나.
Ben: I do too. A few days without sunshine bring me down. 나도 그래. 며칠 햇빛이 없으니 우울했어. 
Gene: But the real problem with rain is we can't play golf. 근데 비가 오면 골프를 못 치는 게 진짜 문제야.
Ben: Actually I tried to play on Sunday but I got rained out. 사실은 일요일에 골프를 치려다가 비가 와서 관뒀어. 
Gene: You picked the day that it rained the hardest. 비가 제일 많이 온 날을 골랐구나.
Ben: I know. I could have picked a better day. 글쎄 말이야. 더 좋은 날로 잡아야 했는데.
Gene: Let's pick another day now that the rain has stopped for a while. 잠시 비도 그쳤데 지금이라도 따로 날을 잡자.
Ben: How about Saturday morning? 토요일 아침 어때?
Gene: I'm tied up Saturday but I'm free Sunday. 토요일은 너무 바빠. 대신 일요일은 시간이 돼.

기억할만한 표현

▶draw A from B: B에서 A를 얻다.
"I draw a lot of satisfaction from the A I got in my writing class." (작문 수업에서 A를 받고 만족감을 얻었습니다.
▶bring(so) down: (누구를) 우울하게 하다. 
"That movie really brought me down." (그 영화를 보고 정말 우울했어요.)
▶be tied up: 너무 바빠서 다른 일을 할 수 없다. 
"I can't talk to you now because I'm tied up." (너무 바빠서 지금은 얘기를 나눌 여유가 없습니다.)

Get real; 정신차리다, 현실적으로 생각하다 (I)
(Joshua is having a meeting with his teacher)
Joshua: You wanted to see me? 저 보자고 하셨어요?
Teacher: Yes. We need to talk. 그래. 우리 얘기 좀 해야겠다.
Joshua: What about? 무슨 얘기요?
Teacher: We have a problem with your attendance. 네 수업 출석에 문제가 있어.
Joshua: So I've ditched a class a few times. 그러니까 제가 수업을 몇 번 빼먹었어요.
Teacher: You've attended 1 class in the last 2 weeks. You're setting yourself up to fail. 2주간 1번 수업에 왔어.낙제하기로 작정한 거야. 
Joshua: Get real! Those classes are really boring. 현실을 봐야죠! 그 수업들 정말 지루해요.
Teacher: It makes no difference. They are required for you to graduate. 상관없어. 졸업하려면 들어야 하는 필수 과목이야
Joshua: What's so important about missing some classes? 수업 좀 빼먹은 게 뭐 그렇게 큰 일이에요?
Teacher: It's important because you are here on a student visa. 넌 여기 학생 비자로 왔으니까 중요하지.

기억할만한 표현

▶ditch a class or school: 학교를 빼먹다. 땡땡이 치다.
“Let’s ditch school and go to the beach.” (학교 땡땡이 치고 바닷가 가자.)
▶set (oneself) up to fail: 실패하려고 작정하다. 실패를 자초하다.
“He doesn’t understand he’s setting himself up to fail by not studying.” (공부를 안 해서 낙제를 자초하고 있는 걸 이해 못해.)
▶It makes no difference: 상관없다. 차이가 없다.
“It makes no difference to me if you want to eat out or eat at home.” (집에서 먹든 외식하든 난 상관없어.)

Get real; 정신 차리다 (II)
(Sandy is cleaning the kitchen when her daughter walks in)
Carla: Mom can I have some money for a movie? 엄마 영화 보게 돈 좀 주실 수 있어요?
Sandy: Get real! I can't believe you asked that question. 말도 안 되는 소리 마라! 그런 걸 물어보다니 기가 막혀서. 
Carla: What are you talking about? 무슨 말씀이세요?
Sandy: I asked you to help me two hours ago and you didn't lift a finger. 2시간 전에 도와달라고 했는데 손 하나 까닥 안 했잖니.
Carla: I'll do what you want me to do first thing in the morning. 아침에 일어나자 마자 말씀하신 거 할게요.
Sandy: The house is being cleaned today! 집 청소는 오늘 하고 있잖아!
Carla: Will you loan me some money for the movie? 그럼 영화 보게 돈 좀 꿔주실 수 있어요?
Sandy: Nothing doing! 안 돼!
Carla: You never let me do what I want. 내가 하고 싶은 건 항상 못하게 해.
Sandy: I think you better go to your room.  네 방으로 들어가는 게 좋을 거 같다.

기억할만한 표현

▶not lift a finger: 손가락 하나 까닥 않다.
“He wouldn’t lift a finger to help anyone.” (그 사람은 남 돕는 일에 손가락 하나 까닥 안 해.)
▶first thing in the morning: 일어나자 마자.
“Call me first thing in the morning if you want to play golf.” (골프 치고 싶으면 일어나자 마자 나한테 전화해.)
▶nothing doing: (거절할 때) 안 돼.
“Nothing doing. You can’t borrow my car.” (안 돼. 내 차 못 빌려.)

Get the hang of it [something]: ~의 요령을 차차 알다
(Carl is talking to his daughter Lisa)
Carl: So how was your first day of work at your first job? 그래 직장 첫 출근한 날이 어땠니?
Lisa: There's so much I have to learn! 배울 게 너무 많아요!
Carl: Aren't you glad you took that computer class this summer? 여름에 컴퓨터 수업을 들은 것 정말 다행이지?
Lisa: Yes! That class came in handy. 네! 그 수업이 아주 도움이 됐죠.
Carl: Do you get along with everyone at work? 직장 사람들하고는 잘 어울리니?
Lisa: Yes everyone is very nice. I just have to do so much. 네 모두들 좋아요. 그저 제가 할 일이 아주 많아서 그렇죠.
Carl: You'll learn everything you have to do. Don't worry. 배워야 될 건 다 배우게 될 거야. 걱정 마.
Lisa: I know. I'll get the hang of it. 맞아요. 곧 요령이 생기겠죠.
Carl: I want to take you out to dinner. Let's do that tonight. 아빠가 저녁을 사주고 싶은데. 오늘 저녁 나가서 먹자.
Lisa: I'd love that! Thank you dad! 좋아요! 고마워요 아빠!

기억할만한 표현

▶(st) comes in handy: ~가 요긴하게 쓰이다 도움이 되다
"My flashlight near my bed at night comes in handy." (침대 곁에 두는 손전등은 아주 요긴하게 쓰입니다.)
▶get along with (so): ~와 잘 어울리다 
"I get along with everyone in my apartment." (저는 아파트에 있는 사람들하고 잘 어울립니다.)
▶take (one) out to dinner: ~를 데리고 나가 저녁을 사주다
"Happy birthday! I'm going to take you out to lunch today." (생일 축하해! 오늘 내가 점심 살게!)


Get the urge to (=have ~); ~하고 싶은 마음이 들다
(Roger is talking to a friend Bobbie at a health club)
Bobbie: You're looking great Roger.  
Roger 자네 아주 좋아 보이는데.
Roger: Thanks. It hasn't been easy. 고마워. 쉽지는 않았어.
Bobbie: What's been the most difficult thing about losing weight? 체중 줄이는데 제일 힘든 건 뭐였어?
Roger: The food. Giving up what I love to eat hasn't been easy.  음식이지. 먹고 싶은 걸 안 먹는 게 쉬운 일이 아냐.
Bobbie: I know what you mean. 무슨 얘긴지 알아.
Roger: Once in a while I get the urge to have some ice cream. 가끔씩 아이스크림이 먹고 싶어지거든.
Bobbie: What do you do? 그럼 어떻게 해?
Roger: I drink water instead. 대신 물을 마시지.
Bobbie: And that helps? 그러면 괜찮아?
Roger: It works for me. 내 경우에는 괜찮아져.

기억할만한 표현

▶give up (st): ~를 그만 두다 포기하다 
"I gave up smoking a long time ago." (전 예전에 담배를 끊었습니다.)
▶once in a while: 가끔씩 
"Once in a while I like to take a walk on the beach." (가끔씩 저는 바닷가 걷기를 즐깁니다.)
▶(it) works for me: 제 취향에 맞아요 제 경우에는 효과가 있습니다
Jim: "You put chocolate on your popcorn?" Roger: "It works for me. I like it." (난 그게 좋아. 맛이 좋아.)

Get to; ~에 도착하다
(Helen is in the kitchen when her husband Steve comes home)
Helen: Hi! How was your day today? 오늘 어땠어? 
Steve: It was rough. 힘들었어. 
Helen: Tell me about it. 얘기해 줘봐. 
Steve: To begin with I didn't get to work until 9:45. 시작하자면 9시45분까지 직장에 출근 못했어. 
Helen: What happened? Why were you late? 어떻게? 왜 늦은 거야? 
Steve: There was an accident on the freeway. freeway에 사고가 났어. 
Helen: So that made you late to work? 그래서 늦었어? 
Steve: Yes. And my boss let me have it. 응. 그래서 상사한테 단단히 당했지. 
Helen: I'm sorry. 미안해. 
Steve: I'll leave for work earlier tomorrow. 내일은 일찍 같이 출근할 거야. 

기억할만한 표현 
▶(st) is rough: ~가 힘들다 
"I had a rough week at work." (전 직장에서 힘든 한 주를 보냈습니다.) 
▶to begin with: 시작하자면 무엇보다도 
A:How was the BBQ party on Saturday? 토요일 BBQ 파틴 어땠어? B:To begin with not many people came 무엇보다도 몇 명 못 왔지
▶(one) let (one) have it: 실컷 호통치다 화내다
"I forgot my girlfriend's birthday and she let me have it." (여자친구 생일을 잊어버려서 그녀는 한바탕 화를 냈습니다.)


Get to do [have] (st); ~할 기회가 생기다(I)
(Jim picks Roger up at the airport in Los Angeles)
Jim: So how was New York City? 그래 뉴욕은 어땠어?
Roger: Oh it was great! Just great! 와 좋았어! 정말 좋았어! 
Jim: How was the weather? 날씨는 어땠어?
Roger: Couldn't be better; sunny blue skies cool breezes. 더할 나위 없이 좋았지. 맑고 하늘도 파랗고 바람도 선선하고.
Jim: How's the family? 가족들은?
Roger: Everybody is good. It was great to see everyone. 모두들 좋아. 모두 보니 아주 좋더라고.
Jim: Did you get to see any plays while you were there? 있는 동안 연극 볼 기회는 없었어?
Roger: No I couldn't. My family had me pretty busy. 응 못 봤어. 가족들이 잘 놓아주질 않아서.
Jim: Do you see yourself moving back to New York? 뉴욕으로 다시 이사 갈 생각은 있어?
Roger: Not right now but I want to make it back for the Christmas holidays. 당장은 아니고 X Mas 전에 다시 가보고 싶어.

기억할만한 표현

▶pretty (busy): 아주 매우 (바쁘다) 
"It's pretty hot today. Let's not play tennis." (오늘은 꽤 덥네요. 테니스는 관둡시다.)
▶do you see yourself? : ~하는 걸 상상이 가세요? 
"Do you see yourself getting married and having children some day?" (장차 결혼해서 아이 낳고 사는 것 상상이 가요?)
▶make it back to [for]: ~에 다시 가다 
"I'm going to try to make it back for supper tonight." (저녁 전까지 들어가도록 노력할게요.)

Get to do (st); (무언가를) 할 기회가 생기다(II)
(Joe is talking to his friend Ken on the telephone)
Joe: So Ken how was your trip to Mexico?켄 그래 멕시코 여행은 어땠어?
Ken: It was great! We came across some rainy days but all in all it was terrific. 좋았지! 비 오는 날이 좀 있었지만 대체로 좋았어. 
Joe: Did you get to do any fishing? 낚시할 기회는 있었어?
Ken: Oh yeah! I caught some big tuna! 아 그럼! 참치를 큰 것으로 좀 잡았다니까!
Joe: I never catch any fish when I go fishing. 난 낚시 가서 뭘 잡은 적이 없어.
Ken: You don't? 그래?
Joe: For me the only time I catch any fish is when I go to the supermarket. 물고기 잡는 건 수퍼 갈 때가 전부야.
Ken: We'll go fishing some time. I'll teach you my technique. 언제 같이 낚시 가자. 내가 사용하는 방법을 가르켜 줄게.
Joe: Thanks but I don't think that will help. 고맙기는 한데 도움이 안될 거야.
Ken: You have to try a different method. Give it a shot. 다른 방법을 시도해 봐야지. 한 번 해 봐.

기억할만한 표현 

▶come across: 우연히 무얼 발견하거나 경험하다.
"I came across some old photos of me when I was in high school." (우연히 고교 때 찍은 낡은 사진을 몇 장 찾았습니다.)
▶all in all: 대체로 전반적으로 
"It wasn't funny but all in all it was a good movie." (재미있지 않았지만 전반적으로 좋은 영화였습니다.)
▶give it (or st) a shot: (뭔가를) 시도하다 해보다.
"Give exercising in the morning a shot. You'll like it." (아침 운동 한 번 해 봐. 좋아할 거야.)


Get (so) to do (st); ~하도록 설득하다(III)
(Steve is talking to Matthew a new worker after Matthew just had lunch with another worker.
Steve: So how was lunch with George? Did you get him to talk? 그래 George와 점심 어땠어? 말문은 트게 했어? 
Matthew: It was good. We talked a little. 좋았어요. 조금은 얘기 나눴어요.
Steve: Really? How did you do that? He is a loner. 그래? 어떻게 그렇게 했어? 외톨이로 지내는 사람인데.
Matthew: We just talked about work. 그냥 일 얘기 했어요.
Steve: He opened up? 터놓고 얘기를 해?
Matthew: I wouldn't say "he opened up". We just talked about work and the company. That's all. 
터놓고 얘기했다고 말하긴 그렇고요. 그냥 일 얘기 회사 얘기 했어요. 그게 다예요.
Steve: That's the most he's talked about with anybody. 조지는 누구하고도 그 정도 얘기한 적이 없어.
Matthew: Well if you give people a chance and the right setting they will talk. 그게요 기회가 되고 상황이 되면 말문을 트잖아.
Steve: Well congratulations. You got George to talk more than I ever could. 어쨌든 축하. George의 말문을 연 거 나보다 낫다. 
Matthew: I've got to get back to work. 전 그만 가서 일해야 되겠어요.

기억할만한 표현

▶is a loner: (누구는) 외톨이야.
“He was a loner in high school. But in college he was a lot friendlier.” (그는 고등학교 때는 외톨이였는데 대학선 엄청 사교적이었어.)
▶opens up: 마음을 터놓고 얘기하다.
“It took me two hours to get him to talk, but he finally opened up.” (말문 여는데 2시간 걸렸는데 결국은 다 불다.)
▶the right setting: (무엇을 하기에) 최적의 상황.
“I’m waiting for the right setting to ask her to marry me. I don’t want to ask her on the bus going to work.” 

Get to know (so); (누구를) 알아가다
(Carl is asking Arthur for advice)
Carl: She's so beautiful. I get tongue-tied when I try to talk to her. 그녀는 너무 예뻐. 말을 붙이려 해도 입이 안 떨어져.
Arthur: It can't be that bad. 그 정도로 안 되는 건 아니겠지.
Carl: Yes it is! Every time I talk to her it comes out all wrong. 정말 그래! 말을 할 때마다 말이 헛 나온다니까.
Arthur: She's just a person like you and me. 그녀도 너나 나처럼 그냥 사람이야.
Carl: What should I do? Should I ask her on a date? 나 어떻게 해야 돼? 데이트 신청해야 돼?
Arthur: Don't rush into it. 서두르지 마.
Carl: Then what do I say? 그럼 무슨 말을 해?
Arthur: Something simple like "Hi how are you? My name is Carl." "안녕 난 칼이야" 같은 간단한 거.
Carl: That sounds easy. 그거 쉽겠다.
Arthur: It is. Get to know her before you ask her for a date. 그래. 조금씩 알아간 다음에 데이트를 신청하라고.

기억할만한 표현

▶tongue-tied: 말문이 막힌, 말을 잘 못하는.
“I always get tongue-tied when I have to speak in public.” (난 연설만 하면 말문이 막혀.)
▶It comes out all wrong: 말이 잘못 나오다.
“When I tried to explain what happened, it came out all wrong.” (무슨 일이 있었는지 설명하려 했는데 말이 잘못 나왔어.)
▶rush into (st): (무엇을) 서둘러 하다.
“She rushed into her marriage and now she‘s sorry.” (그녀는 서둘러 결혼하더니 이젠 후회해.)

Get to the point; 요점만 말해
(Amy is talking to her sister Erin   Amy가 동생 Erin과 이야기를 한다)
Amy: This is our first business lunch and I'm paying for it. 이게 우리의 첫번째 사업상 점심이니까 식사값은 내가 낼게.
Erin: Our first business lunch? You lost me. 우리의 첫번째 사업상 점심이라고? 무슨 말인지 모르겠어. 
Amy: Last night I saw a woman selling her homemade jellies and jams. 한 여자가 홈메이드 젤리와 잼을 파는 걸 봤어.
Erin: Please get to the point. 요점만 말해봐.
Amy: We can do the same thing. 우리도 똑같이 할 수 있다는 거지.
Erin: Do you want to sell that woman's homemade jelly? 그 여자가 집에서 만든 젤리를 팔겠다는 거야?
Amy: Don't be silly. Remember how popular Mom's barbecue sauce has always been?
엄마가 만든 바비큐 소스 인기가 얼마나 좋았는지 기억나지?
Erin: Yeah. She always wanted to start her own business. 응. 그걸로 사업을 시작하는 게 항상 엄마의 꿈이었잖아.
Amy: I'm sure we have what it takes to sell it for her. 그걸 판매하는데 필요한 조건은 다 갖춘 거야.
Erin: I like your idea. We can carry out her dream. 언니 아이디어 맘에 든다. 엄마의 꿈을 이룰 수 있겠어.

기억할만한 표현
▶lose (so): 무슨 말을 하는지 이해할 수 없다. 
"You lose me every time you talk about computers." (컴퓨터 얘기만 나오면 네가 무슨 말을 하는지 도통 모르겠어.)
▶have what it takes: (~으로 성공할) 자질이 있다..
"He doesn't have what it takes to be a musician." (그는 뮤지션이 될 자질이 없어.)
▶carry out (st): 실행에 옮기다. 이루다. 
"They carried their plans out to perfection." (그들은 계획을 완벽하게 실행에 옮겼어.)

Get (st) under control; (무엇을) 처리하다
(Mark is leaving the office before the end of the day. 마크가 퇴근하는데)
Mark: See you tomorrow Ron. Ron 내일 봐.
Ron: You're leaving a little early aren't you? 조금 일찍 퇴근하네. 그치?
Mark: Something came up at home and I need to take care of it now. 집에 무슨 일이 생겨서 지금 가봐야 돼.
Ron: What's the problem? Maybe I can help. 무슨 일인데? 내가 도움이 될 지도 모르잖아.
Mark: Thanks for the offer but this is a personal problem. 말은 고마운데 개인적인 문제야.
Ron: Are you taking off tomorrow too? 내일도 쉬는 거야?
Mark: I hope not. I’d be able to get this problem under control today. 내일은 나와야지. 이 문제는 오늘 처리할 수 있을 거야.
Ron: Sounds good. Call me if there's anything I can do. 그래. 내가 해줄 게 있으면 전화해.
Mark: Thanks. I might take you up on that. 고마워. 도움 필요하면 전화할게.

기억할만한 표현

▶(st) comes up: (무슨 일이) 갑자기 일어나다. 
'If that problems comes up again I'll take care of it."  (그 문제가 또 갑자기 생기면 내가 처리할 거야.)
▶take off: 일을 쉬다. 
"I haven’t taken off a day in two years.'(2년 동안 하루도 쉰 적이 없어.)
▶take (so) up on (st): 제의나 초대를 받아들이다. 
'I hope she takes me up on my offer to help her.' (돕고 싶다는 내 제의를 그녀가 받아들였으면 좋겠어.)



Give  (so) a hand; (누구를) 돕다
(Marcy comes home from shopping and is talking to her husband Michael) 
Marcy: Michael would you give me a hand with the groceries?  마이클 장 본 거 가져가는 것 좀 도와줘. 
Michael: Sure.  물론이지. 
Marcy: There are more bags in the car.  차에 가져올 봉지 더 있어. 
Michael: Wow! You bought enough chicken to feed an army.  와! 닭고기를 1개 사단 먹일 만큼 샀네. 
Marcy: That's for the barbecue on Saturday.  토요일 바비큐 할 때 쓸 거야. 
Michael: Barbecue? What barbecue?  BBQ? 무슨 BBQ?
Marcy: You forgot? We're having friends over for a BBQ this Saturday. 까먹었어? 이번 토요일에 친구들 초대해서 BBQ파티 하잖아. 
Michael: Oh I thought it was next Saturday.  아 난 다음 주 토요일인줄 알았지. 
Marcy: No dear. It's this Saturday. 아니야 여보. 이번 토요일이야. 
Michael: I better get the back yard in shape.  뒤뜰 치워야겠네.

기억할만한 표현

▶buy [have, make] enough of (st) to feed an army [large number of people].
“I made enough spaghetti to feed an army.” (1개 사단을 먹여도 될 만큼 스파게티 많이 만들었어.)
▶have (so) over: (누구를) 부르다, 초대하다.
“I had my boss and his wife over for dinner last night.” (난 지난 밤에 부장님 부부를 집에 초대했었어.)
▶get (so, st) in shape: (무엇을) 치우다, 정비하다. 몸을 만들다.
“I have to get my car in shape and take it to the mechanic.”(내 차는 정비를 하느라고 정비사한테 맡겨야 해.)

Give (so) a lift; 차를 태워주다(I)
(Matthew is talking to his roommate Joe)
Matthew: I have to return some books to the library today. 오늘 도서관에 책을 몇 권 반납해야 돼.
Joe: I can give you a lift. 내가 태워다 줄게.
Matthew: Really? 정말?
Joe: Sure. I'm going in that direction. 그럼. 같은 방향으로 가거든.
Matthew: Where are you going today? 오늘 어디 가는데?
Joe: I'm going to the beach. I want to get in some surfing. 바닷가에 갈 거야. 파도타기를 좀 하려고.
Matthew: The waves are good today. 오늘 파도가 아주 좋더라.
Joe: I know. I was listening to the weather report on TV last night.맞아. 나도 어젯밤에 TV에서 날씨 예보를 봤거든. 
Matthew: I'll catch a bus home from the library.  도서관에서 집으로 갈 때는 버스 타고 갈게.
Joe: I'm ready to go if you are.  괜찮으면 지금 출발하자.

기억할만한 표현

▶(one) is going in that direction: 같은 방향으로 가다. 
"I'm not going to the mall but I'm going in that direction. I can take you there." 
▶get in (some activity): (무슨 일을 할) 기회를 찾다. 
"I want to get in some shows on Broadway when I'm in N Yk." (NY에 가면 Broadway 쇼에 참여할 기회를 찾고 싶어.)
▶catch a bus: 버스를 타다. 
"I catch a bus every morning at 8:00." (전 매일 아침 8시에 버스를 타요.)


Give (so) a lift; 차를 태워주다(II)
(Roberta is talking to her roommate Karen. Roberta 가 룸메이트 Karen과 이야기를 나눈다)
Roberta: Karen can you give me a lift to the mall today? Karen 오늘 쇼핑 몰까지 태워다 줄 수 있어?
Karen: Sure. How are you going to get back? 그래. 올 때는 어떻게 할 거야?
Roberta: I'll take a cab. 택시 탈 거야.
Karen: Okay no problem. 알았어. 문제 없어.
Roberta: Thanks 고마워.
Karen: What are you shopping for? 뭐 쇼핑할 건데?
Roberta: Earrings are on sale at my favorite jewelry store. 내가 제일 좋아하는 보석가게에서 귀걸이를 세일하더라고.
Karen: Really? 정말?
Roberta: Yes. And the prices can't be beat. 응. 그리고 가격도 더 쌀 수 없어. 
Karen: I'll go shopping for earrings. And you won't have to take a cab home. 귀걸이 쇼핑해야지. 집에 올 때 택시 안 타도 되겠다.

기억할만한 표현

▶get back: 돌아오다.
“I won’t get back until around 10:00 tonight.” (오늘밤 10시까지는 안 돌아올 거야.)
▶no problem: 문제 없어. 좋아. 괜찮아.
Jim: “Can I borrow $20 until tomorrow?” (내일까지 20달러 빌릴 수 있어?) Roger: “Sure. No problem.” (그래. 문제 없어.)
▶The prices can’t be beat: 이보다 싼 가격은 없어.

Give (so) a ring; (누구에게) 전화하다
(Jim and Roger are talking at work 직장에서 이야기를 나눈다)
Jim: Have you seen Terry? Terry 봤어?
Roger: No. Why is he late? 아니. 왜 아직 안 왔어?
Jim: Yes. It's not like him to be late. 응. 지각하고 그러는 사람이 아닌데.
Roger: Why don't you give him a ring?  전화 한 번 해보지 그래?
Jim: I did but he doesn't answer his home phone and he doesn't have a cell phone. 했지만 집 전화는 안 받고 휴대폰은 아예 없어.
Roger: Maybe he's stuck in traffic. 길이 막혀서 그러는 지도 모르지.
Jim: He doesn't drive. He takes the bus everywhere. 운전 안 해. 어딜 가든 버스 타고 다니잖아. 
Roger: Maybe his bus came late. 버스가 늦게 왔을 수도 있잖아.
Jim: That could be it. 그럴 지도 모르겠다.
Roger: He's sure to be here soon. 틀림없이 곧 올 거야.

기억할만한 표현

▶It's not like (so) to (do st): ~할 사람이 아니다. 
"Brian is always late. It's not like him to be on time anywhere." (Brian은 항상 늦어. 제 시간에 올 사람이 아니야.)
▶stuck in traffic: 교통 체증에 걸리다. 
"I'm late because I was stuck in traffic." (길이 막히는 바람에 늦었어요.)
▶(one) is sure to (do st): 꼭 ~할 거야. 
"She's sure to bring chocolate to the party. She always does." (틀림없이 파티에 초콜릿을 가져올 거야. 매번 가져오거든.)



Get  yourself out of the hole; 빚을 갚다
(Two friends are having lunch)
Alan: I've just been reading an article about personal finance. 최근에 개인 재정에 대한 기사를 읽게 됐어.
Jerry: Did you learn anything? 도움 된 게 있어?
Alan: Yeah. It made me think that I ought to sort out my own finances. They are a mess. 응. 재정 정리 생각이 들었어. 엉망이거든.
Jerry: I was in the same position two years ago. 나도 2년 전에 똑 같은 상황이었어.
Alan: How did you get yourself out of the hole? 빚은 어떻게 갚았어?
Jerry: I got a professional financial advisor to help me put them in order. 전문 재정 상담가한테 의뢰해서 정리했지.
Alan: Was he any good? How did you find him? 그 사람 괜찮아? 어떻게 알게 됐어?
Jerry: It was a lady actually. My brother uses her and he introduced me to her. 사실은 여자야. 형이 쓰던 분인데 소개해줬어. 
Alan: Is she any good? Do you trust her? 그 여자분 괜찮아? 믿을 만해?
Jerry: She's terrific and she's honest as the day is long. 잘 해. 그리고 아주 정직해.

기억할만한 표현

▶sort out (st): (무엇을) 정리하다, 분류하다.
“He is sorting out all the paper work on his desk.”(그 사람은 책상에 있는 서류를 전부 정리하고 있어.)
▶put (st) in order: (무엇을) 순서대로 정리하다.
“She should be putting her priorities in order.” (그녀는 우선 과제를 순서대로 정리해야 돼.)
▶(One) is honest as the day is long: 아주 정직하다.
“I’ve known him for thirty years and I know he is honest as the day is long.” (30년간 알고 지내는데 아주 정직한 사람이야.)

Give (so) a second chance; 또 한 번의 기회를 주다
(Jordan walks into Marty's office)
Jordan: What did the boss have to say? 부장이 뭐라는 거야?
Marty: He said that I'm not taking care of business. 내가 일 처리를 잘 못한대.
Jordan: He isn't going to fire you is he? 널 자르겠다는 건 아니지 그렇지?
Marty: No. He's going to give me a second chance. 아니. 기회를 한 번 더 주겠대.
Jordan: Why is he putting all the blame on you? 책임을 다 너한테 돌리는 이유가 뭐래?
Marty: Because I'm responsible for the project. 프로젝트를 책임지고 있으니까 그런 거야.
Jordan: But Jason is the reason it's late. 하지만 프로젝트가 늦은 건 Jason 때문이잖아. 
Marty: Well I'm responsible for everyone else who is working on the project. 글쎄 그 일을 하는 사람이 누구건 다 내 책임이야.
Jordan: At least he's giving you a second chance. 적어도 부장이 기회를 한 번 주기는 하는구나.
Marty: I'm thankful for that. Now let's get to work. 그건 고맙지. 자 일 하자.

기억할만한 표현

▶take care of business: 일을 잘 처리하다. 
"She always takes care of business so I'm giving her a promotion." (그녀가 항상 일을 잘 처리해서 승진을 시켜줄 거야.)
▶put (all) the blame on (so): (모든) 책임을 (누구에게) 돌리다. 
"I hope he doesn't put all the blame on me." (그 사람이 모든 책임을 내게 돌리지 않았으면 좋겠어.)
▶at least: 적어도. 최소한. 



Give (st) a try; 한 번 해보다
(Marshall is talking to his wife Pam)
Marshall: Do you know Jason's cell phone number? 제이슨 휴대폰 번호 알아?
Pam: Not off the top of my head. 지금 당장은 모르지.
Marshall: How about his home number? I'll call his wife. 집 전화 번호는? 그의 부인한테 전화해 보게. 
Pam: Nope. Look it up in the phone book. 모르지. 전화번호 적은 거 찾아봐.
Marshall: I tried but it's not listed. 찾아봤는데 없어.
Pam: Did you give his office a try? 사무실로 전화해봤어?
Marshall: Of course. That's how I discovered he wasn't there. 물론 했지. 전화해봤으니까 사무실에 없는 거 알았지. 
Pam: I mean to ask his secretary if she knows the number. 내 말은 비서한테 번호 알려달라고 물어 봤냐고. 
Marshall: Fat chance that she would tell me. 나한테 그걸 알려줄 가능성이 거의 없지.
Pam: You don't know that unless you try. 해보지도 않고 어떻게 알아.

기억할만한 표현

▶off the top of my head: (사실 확인 없이) 즉석에서 말하다. 
"I can't give you accurate information off the top of my head." (즉석에서 정확한 정보를 주진 못하지.)
▶look (st) up: (무엇을) 찾아보다. 
"I looked the word up in the dictionary but I didn't understand the meaning." (그 단어를 찾았는데 뜻을 모르겠어.)
▶fat chance: 가망이 거의 없는. 
A:"I'm going to ask Sharon for a date." B:"Fat chance she'll go out with you." (Sharon이 너랑 데이트 할 가능성은 거의 없어.)

Give away (st); ~를 (거저) 주다, 기부하다
(Mark is talking to his friend Andrew on the telephone)
Mark: Did I tell you that I'm moving? 내가 이사한다고 얘기했던가?
Andrew: No but Diane did. 아니 하지만 다이앤이 얘기했어.
Mark: I want to give away some books that I have. 내 책들을 주어버리려고 하거든.
Andrew: Really? I'd like to check them out. 정말? 좀 봐도 될까.
Mark: Come by any time on Saturday. 토요일에 아무 때나 와.
Andrew: Do you need any help moving? 이사하는데 도와줄까?
Mark: I have plenty of help. Some friends from work are going to help me. Thanks for asking.
도와줄 사람이 꽤 많아. 직장 친구들이 와서 도와줄 거야. 고마워.
Andrew: Sure. 뭘.
Mark: And can I interest you in some furniture I want to sell? 참 팔려는 가구가 있는데 자네 살 마음이 있어?
Andrew: Sure. I'd like to see what you have. 그래. 뭐가 있는지 내가 볼께.

기억할만한 표현

▶check (st) out: ~를 자세히 보다 알아보다
"I want to check out some shoes in this store." (이 가게에 있는 구두들을 좀 알아보고 싶습니다.)
▶come by: 들르다 오다
"You have to come by and see what I did with my garden." (우리 집에 들러서 정원이 어떻게 됐는지 보셔야 돼요.)
▶can I interest you in (st)? : ~를 원하세요? 살 마음이 있으세요?
"Can I interest you in something to drink?" (뭐 마실 것 좀 드릴까요?)

Give it a rest (불평을) 그만 해
(David is talking to Jack at work)
David: And another thing that bothers me about Nancy; she’s usually late to work. 신경 쓰이는 게 지각이 잦아. 
Jack: She has to take her child to school first thing in the morning. 아침에 제일 먼저 아이들을 학교에 데려다 줘야 해. 
David: And she makes mistakes when she types letters. 그리고 타자 칠 때 실수를 해.
Jack: Everyone makes mistakes. 실수는 누구나 해.
David: And sometimes she parks her car too close to mine. I can’t get in mine. 차를 내 차에 너무 바짝 세워. 차를 탈 수 없어.
Jack: David, give it a rest. I don’t want to hear any more of your complaints. 데이빗, 그만 해. 더 이상 불평 듣기 싫어.
David: I’ve had it with her. 나는 그녀가 질렸어. 
Jack: I think the two of you should sit down and talk. 두 사람은 마주 앉아 얘기를 해야 돼.
David: What for? 뭣 때문에?
Jack: Just to clear the air. 오해를 풀려고.

기억할만한 표현

▶first thing in the morning: 아침에 제일 먼저. 
“I always take a shower first thing in the morning.” (저는 항상 아침에 제일 먼저 샤워를 합니다.) 
▶has had it with (so, st): (누구 혹은 무엇에 대해) 더 못 참다. 지겹다.
“I’ve had it with that loud music. It’s late. I’m calling the police.” (시끄러운 음악소리 더 못 참겠어. 경찰 부르겠습니다.)
▶clear the air: 오해를 풀다.
“We need to clear the air. Would you come in my office?”

Give it a shot; ~를 처음으로 시도해보다
(Mark is talking to Allan on the telephone)
Mark: Allan Are you still looking to make some extra money? 앨런 아직도 부업 거리를 찾고 있어?
Allan: Yes. Like I told you I don't make enough at my part-time job. 응. 얘기한 것처럼 파트타임으로는 돈을 못 벌어.
Mark: Well I need someone to work six hours on Saturdays. 토요일에 6시간 일할 사람이 필요하거든.
Allan: What I would be doing? 내가 뭘 하게 될까?
Mark: I need you at the cash register. 계산대에서 일해줬으면 해.
Allan: I never worked as a cashier before. 캐시어로 일해본 적은 없는데.
Mark: I'll train you. You'll pick it up fast. 내가 가르쳐 줄게. 금방 배울 거야.
Allan: Okay. I'll give it a shot. When do you need me to start? 알았어. 해볼게. 언제 시작할까?
Mark: How about next Saturday at 9:00? How does that work for you? 다음 토요일 9시는 어때? 괜찮을까?
Allan: That's fine. I'll see you Saturday at 9. Thanks for thinking of me. 좋아. 토요일 9시에 보자. 기억해줘서 고마워. 

기억할만한 표현 

▶is (one) still: 아직도 ~ 하고 있나요? 
"Are you still working downtown at the bank?" (아직도 다운타운 은행에서 일하십니까?)
▶pick it up fast: 아주 빨리 배우다 
"My son can ride a bicycle now. He picked it up fast." (우리 아들이 이젠 자전거를 탈 수 있어요. 아주 빨리 배웠어요.)
▶How does that work for you? : (~조건 등이) 괜찮으시겠어요?
"I'll pick you up at 7:00 for dinner. How does that work for you?" (저녁 먹으러 제가 7시에 모시러 가죠. 어떠세요?)


Give me a break; 좀 봐줘
(Ivan and Liz are watching TV. Ivan and Liz가 TV를 보면서)
Ivan: They're organizing a basketball team at work. I'm thinking about playing. 회사가 농구팀을 만든대. 농구를 할까 해.
Liz: I don't think that's a good idea. 그거 별로 좋은 생각이 아닌데.
Ivan: Give me a break. I was a good high school player. 한 번 봐주라. 나도 고등학교 때 괜찮은 농구선수였어.
Liz: That was twenty years ago. I don't want you to have a heart attack running up and down the court.
그건 20년 전 이야기지. 코트 양쪽을 뛰어다니다 심장마비 일으키면 어떡해.
Ivan: Do you want me to give up basketball? 농구하는 거 포기하라는 거야?
Liz: Well you should at least get a physical. 그게 최소한 건강 검진은 받아야지.
Ivan: Okay I can do that. 알았어. 그건 받지.
Liz: And you need to cut back on fatty foods so you can lose some weight. 그리고 기름진 음식 줄여서 체중도 줄여.
Ivan: That's a good idea. 그거 좋은 생각이야.
Liz: But I'm still worried about you having a heart attack.  그래도 심장 마비 일으킬까 걱정돼.

기억할만한 표현

▶running up and down the court: (농구 등의) 코트 양 쪽 끝을 계속 뛰어다니다. 
"He runs up and down the court faster than anyone." (그는 누구보다 빨리 코트 양쪽을 뛰어다녀.) 
▶at least: 적어도. 
"At least you should listen to his expectations." (적어도 그가 뭘 기대하는 지는 들어야지.)
▶cut back on (st): (무엇을) 줄이다. 
"I have to cut back on driving since the gas prices have increased."  (가스 값이 올라서 운전을 덜 할 수 밖에 없어요.)

Give notice; (흔히 사임 의사를 회사에 밝히다)통고하다.(I)
(Burt and his wife Sally are preparing dinner)
Burt: I got an e-mail from Mitch Loftus today. 오늘 Mitch Loftus 한테 메일을 받았어.
Sally: What's up with him? 그 사람 무슨 일 있어?
Burt: He gave notice yesterday. 어제 회사에 사직 의사를 밝혔대.
Sally: Really? How long has he worked at the bank? 정말? 그 은행에서 일 한지 얼마 됐지?
Burt: I think it's been close to twenty years. 거의 20 년 됐을 걸.
Sally: Did he say why he was leaving? 왜 떠난다고 말은 했대?
Burt: He said he was tired of his job and needed a change. 일이 싫증나서 뭔가 변화가 필요하다고 했대.
Sally: What's he planning to do? 뭘 하려고 생각 중인데?
Burt: His dream job. He's going to be a Park Ranger. 항상 꿈꾸던 것. 국립공원 보호감찰원.
Sally: That makes sense considering how much he likes the outdoors. 사람 얼마나 자연을 좋아하는지 보면 사실 납득이 가네.

기억할만한 표현 

▶what's up with (one)? ~한테 무슨 일이 있나요 어떻게 지냅니까?
"What's up with you Tom. You haven't been at work for a week." (무슨 일이야? 직장에 안 온지 일주일이나 됐는데.)
▶dream job: 항상 꿈꿔오던 직업
"He thought he had his dream job but he discovered that it wasn't." 
▶make sense: 납득이 가다 
"It doesn't make sense to drive when you can walk." (걸어갈 수 있는데 차를 탄다는 게 납득이 가지 않는군요.)

Give notice; (보통 2주 전에) 사직한다고 통고하다(II)
(Ken is talking to Dave at work. Ken이 직장에서 Dave와 이야기를 한다)
Ken: Well I did it. 있잖아 나 결행했어. 
Dave: You did what? 뭘 말이야?
Ken: I told Jim that I was leaving. 짐한테 회사 그만둔다고 얘기했어.
Dave: You gave notice? 사직 통고한 거야?
Ken: Yes the standard two-week notice. 응 흔히 하는 대로 2주 전에 통고했어.
Dave: What are you going to do? Do you have another job? 뭐 할 건데? 다른 직장은 있어?
Ken: No. I'm just going to kick back for a while. 아니. 한 동안 쉬려고.
Dave: How long can you afford to do that? 얼마나 쉴 수 있는 여유가 있는데?
Ken: I've saved up enough money so that I don't have to work for about a year. 돈은 넉넉히 모아놔서 1년은 일 안 해도 돼.
Dave: Well good luck to you.  그래 잘 되길 바랄게.

기억할만한 표현

▶kick back: 쉬다. 
“I’m just going to kick back this weekend and watch football on TV.” (이번 주말엔 그냥 쉬면서 풋볼 중계를 볼까 봐.)
▶afford to (do st): (무엇을 할) 여유가 있다. 
“I can afford to buy that car, so I’m going to do it.” (난 저 차 살 여유가 있으니까 살 거야.)
▶save up (money): (돈을) 따로 모아두다.
“She saved up her money from babysitting to buy a new computer.” (그녀는 컴퓨터를 사려고 babysit로 돈을 모았어.)

Give off; (냄새, 분위기 등을) 풍기다
(Mary and her roommate Vicky are talking about their favorite thing)
Mary: I have a question. 질문이 하나 있어.
Vicky: Fire away. 어서 해봐.
Mary: What's your favorite flower? 네가 제일 좋아하는 꽃이 뭐야?
Vicky: That's easy night blooming jasmine. 그건 쉽지 밤에 피는 재스민. 
Mary: Why that flower? 왜 그 꽃을?
Vicky: It gives off a lovely fragrance. 향기가 너무 좋아서.
Mary: What's your favorite Rock group? 제일 좋아하는 록 그룹은?
Vicky: Oh hands down the Rolling Stones. 그거야 당연히 롤링 스톤스. 
Mary: And what's your favorite ice cream flavor? 제일 좋아하는 아이스크림은?
Vicky: That's a no-brainer chocolate. 당연히 cake.

기억할만한 표현 

▶fire away: 어서 물어보세요 얘기하세요
"I'm ready for any questions you want to ask me. Fire away." (묻고 싶은 질문이 준비가 돼있어요. 어서 물어보세요.)
▶hands down: 단연코 누가 뭐래도 
"Hands down Tiger Woods is the best golfer in the world." (누가 뭐래도 세계 최고의 골프선수는 타이거 우즈죠.)
"He's the slowest runner on the team hands down." (그는 누가 뭐래도 팀 중에서 제일 늦게 뛰는 선수야.)
▶that's [it's] a no-brainer: 그건 다시 생각할 필요도 없이 
"This test is going to be so easy. It's a no-brainer." (그 시험은 아주 쉬울 거야. 다시 간단해.)

Give up (st); 포기하다(I)
(Alice is talking to her husband Charlie)
Alice: So what did the doctor say? 그래 의사가 뭐라고 해?
Charlie: He said I have to give up a lot of things. 포기해야 되는 게 많대.
Alice: Like what? 어떤 것?
Charlie: I have to give up red meat salt and sweets. 붉은 색 고기하고 짠 것 단 것.
Alice: Did he say anything about exercise? 운동 얘기는 없고?
Charlie: Yes. I have to put in at least one hour of exercise three times a week. 응. 일주일에 세 번씩 한 시간은 운동해야 돼.
Alice: Can you do it? 할 수 있겠어?
Charlie: I have no choice. 별 다른 도리가 없어.
Alice: I'll help you. We'll work out together. 내가 도와 줄게. 운동 같이 하자.
Charlie: Thanks. That would help. 고마워. 그러면 도움이 될 거야.

기억할만한 표현

▶put in (time): 시간을 들이다 
"She put in 5 hours working on the report on Saturday." (리포트 쓰는데 토요일에 5시간 들였다.)
▶(one) has no choice but to: 다른 도리가 없다 
"It's raining so we have no choice but to cancel the picnic." (비가 오니 별다른 수 없이 소풍을 취소 해야겠어.)
▶work out: 운동하다 
"I work out three times a week at the club." (저는 헬스클럽에서 일주일에 세 번씩 일했습니다.)

Give up (st); 포기하다(II)
(Two friends are having coffee. 친구 둘이 커피를 마시며)
Leslie: Do you have anything special planned for the summer? 여름에 특별히 계획한거 있을 거야. 넌 뭐할 건데
Leslie: Well I'm going to do something different. I'm going to volunteer. 글쎄 뭔가 색 다른 걸 할 거야. 자원봉사.
Marion: Volunteer to do what? 자원봉사 뭘 하는데? 
Leslie: I have a list of places to check out 여기 저기 알아볼 만한 곳을 모은 리스트가 있어. 
Marion: That doesn't sound like a fun way to spend your summer. 그건 여름을 재미있게 보낼 만한 건 아닌 것 같다. 
Leslie: I can't afford to do anything so I'm going to give up a day a week to help somebody else.
경제적인 여유가 없어서 할 수 있는 게 없어. 1 2주는 포기하고 다른 사람 도우려고. 
Marion: Are you doing this because President Obama wants us to? Obama 대통령의 말대로 하려는 거야?
Leslie: Yes. He's my inspiration. 응. 그는 대통령은 자극이 돼.
Marion: Whatever turns you on. I think I'll find something more fun to do.

기억할만한 표현

▶Money is tight: 돈에 쪼들리다.
“Since money is tight, we will be eating at home most of the time.” (돈에 쪼들려서 어지간하면 외식 안 할 거야.)
▶check (st) out: (무엇을) 살펴보다, 확인하다.
“Have you checked out the new Brad Pitt movie?” (Brad Pitt 새 영화 봤어.)
▶Whatever turns you on: 네 맘대로 해.
“I don’t like it, but whatever turns you on.” (난 마음에 안 들지만 너 하고 싶은 대로 해.)


Go ahead; 시작해, 계속해
(Two friends are talking on the telephone)
Sid: Hey Larry do you know where the Clinton Movie Theater is? 어이 래리. 클린턴 영화관 어디 있는지 알아?
Larry: Yeah. Why do you want to know? 응. 왜 그러는데?
Sid: I asked Jennifer out for Saturday night. Jennifer 한테 토요일 밤에 데이트하자고 했거든.
Larry: Wow! You've been seeing a lot of her lately. You ready for the directions? 와! 너 그녀하고 보내는 시간이 많다. 가는 길 적을 준빈?
Sid: I'm ready to write. Go ahead. 적을 준비됐어. 얘기해. 
Larry: Go south on 1st St cross the river and hang a right on Pine St. 1st st 남쪽으로 가다 강을 건너 파인 st에서 우회전해.
Sid: Right on Pine Street? 파인 St에서 우회전?
Larry: Correct. The theater is next to the church. 그렇지. 영화관은 교회 옆에 있어.
Sid: Next to the church. Got it. Thanks. 교회 옆이라. 알았어. 고마워.
Larry: I hope you two have a good time. 하고 즐거운 시간 가져.

기억할만한 표현

▶ask (so) out: 데이트 신청을 하다. (또는 ask out someone)
"Did you ask her out?" (그녀에게 데이트 신청했어?)
▶see a lot of (soe): (누구와) 많은 시간을 보내다.
"She has seen him a lot this month."(이번 달에 그녀는 그와 많은 시간을 보냈어.)
▶hang a right (or left): 우회전 (혹은 좌회전)을 하다.
"I hung a right, but I should have hung a left. (난 우회전을 했는데 좌회전을 했어야 했어.)

Go all out; 전력을 다하다(I)
(Amy and Lois are having lunch. 점심을 같이 하며)
Amy: You look different. Is that a new blouse? 너 다르게 보인다. 그 블라우스 새로 산 거야?
Lois: I just got my hair cut. Do you think it's too short? 새로 머리 커트했어. 너무 짧게 친 거 같니?
Amy: No it looks terrific. 아니. 멋있다 얘.
Lois: You're just saying that. 말로만 그러는 거지?
Amy: No I'm not. It looks good on you. 아니야. 진짜야. 너한테 잘 어울려.
Lois: I hope so. I want to get the attention of a new guy at work. 그랬으면 좋겠다. 남자직원이 새로 왔는데 관심을 좀 끌려고.
Amy: That shouldn't be a problem. 관심 끄는 건 문제 없겠는데.
Lois: I bought some nice clothes too. 옷도 예쁜 것으로 좀 샀어.
Amy: He must be special. You're going all out. 특별한 사람인가 보네. 네가 애를 쓰는 걸 보니.
Lois: I think he is. I'll tell you what happens. 특별한 사람이야. 진행 상황이 생기면 너한테 알려줄게.

기억할만한 표현

▶You're just saying that: 말로만 그러는 거지? 말이 그렇다는 거지? 
"Are you just saying that or do you really mean it?" (말로만 그러는 거야 아니면 진심이야?)
▶It (or st) looks good on you: 잘 어울려. 
"That blue shirt looks good on you." (파란색 셔츠 너한테 잘 어울린다.)
▶get (so's) attention: (누구의) 관심을 끌다.
"She got his attention when she bought him a drink." (그 여자는 술 한 잔 사주면서 그 남자 관심을 샀잖아.)


Go all out; 온 힘을 다 쏟다(II)
(Sue is talking to her husband Eric at a party. 수가 파티에서 남편 Eric과 이야기를 나눈다)
Sue: Wow! Look at all the great food Kelly made! 와! 켈리가 만든 이 멋진 음식들 좀 봐!
Eric: Yes. She went all out for this party. 그래. 켈리가 이번 파티를 위해 심혈을 기울였네.
Sue: Have you tried the stuffed mushrooms? They're scrumptious.: 속을 채운 버섯 전 좀 먹어봐. 정말 맛있어.
Eric: They are. And that crab dip is out of this world. 정말 맛있네. 그리고 저기 게 살 딥도 너무 맛있어. 
Sue: Kelly always has great parties. 켈리가 여는 파티는 항상 대단해.
Eric: She puts a lot into them. 파티에 정성을 쏟잖아.
Sue: We should have a party at our house soon. 우리도 조만간 집에서 파티를 열어야지.
Eric: As soon as we finish decorating it. 집안 장식을 끝내면 곧바로 해야지. 
Sue: I'd love to make stuffed mushrooms like this. 나도 여기 있는 것 같은 버섯 전을 만들고 싶어.
Eric: Ask Kelly. I'm sure she'll give you the recipe. 켈리에게 물어봐. 분명 조리법을 알려줄 거야.

기억할만한 표현

▶(food) is scrumptious: (음식이) 굉장히 맛있다. 
"The chicken is scrumptious. You have to try it." (닭 요리 정말 맛있다. 한 번 먹어봐.)
▶is out of this world: (이 세상 것이 아닌 것처럼) 너무 좋다. 
"The salmon dish is out of this world." (이 연어 요리는 너무 맛있어.)
▶Put a lot (of st) into (st) (돈이나 시간 등을) 쏟다 들이다.
"He puts a lot of time into his family." (그는 가족을 위해 많은 시간을 씁니다.)

Go all out; 모든 힘을 다 쏟다(III)
(A high school basketball coach is talking to his team before a game)
Coach: All right everybody listen up! 자 전부 주목!
Ray: Quiet guys coach is talking. 모두 조용히 해. 코치님 말씀하시잖아.
Coach: We can beat this team. They're not better than us. 오늘 상대팀은 꺾을 수 있어. 우리보다 나을 게 없거든.
Kevin: We have to play tight defense. 우린 밀착 수비를 해야 돼.
Paul: We have to go all out the entire game. 경기 내내 힘을 다 쏟아야 돼.
Coach: That's right. 그렇지.
Sam: We can't let them get easy baskets. 점수를 쉽게 내주면 안돼. 
Coach: If we work together for forty-eight minutes we can win this game. 48분 간 힘을 합하면 경기를 이길 수 있어.
Ray: All right guys defense on three! 자 하나 둘 셋에 수비다!
Everybody: One two three defense! 하나 둘 셋 수비!

기억할만한 표현

▶listen up: 주목.
"Listen up kids. We have to leave the house by 9:00 tomorrow morning." (잘 들어. 우린 내일 아침 9시에 집에서 떠날 거야.)
▶tight defense: 밀착 수비. 
"Tight defense will win the game for us." (우린 밀착 수비를 해야 경기를 이길 수 있어.)
▶easy baskets: 쉽게 득점하다. 
"They got a lot of easy baskets on us because we played poor defense."(우리 수비가 허술해서 실점을 쉽게 하잖아.)


Go back (to a place); (어디로) 돌아가다 
(Min Su is talking to his teacher Roger in class)
Min Su: Where's Rae Hee? Is she absent today? 래희 어디 있어요? 오늘 결석이에요?
Roger: No. She went back to Korea. 아니다. 한국으로 돌아갔어.
Min Su: She did? 그랬어요?
Roger: Yes. Yesterday was her last day. 그래. 어제가 마지막 날이었어.
Min Su: I'm going to miss her. 래희 생각 날 거에요.
Roger: Me too. She was a good student. 나도 그렇다. 좋은 학생이었는데.
Min Su: And a lot of fun to be with. 같이 있으면 재미있었고요.
Roger: Well do you have your homework? 그래 숙제는 해왔니?
Min Su: Yes here it is. 예 여기 있어요.
Roger: Let's go over your homework before we start today's lesson. 오늘 공부 시작하기 전에 숙제 한 거 보자.

기억할만한 표현

▶miss (so): (누가) 보고 싶다, 그립다.
“I love studying English in LA, but I miss my family in Korea.”(LA에서 영어 공부하는 건 좋은데 한국에 있는 가족이 보고 싶어.)
▶(One) is fun to be with: (누구는) 같이 있으면 재미있다.
“My uncle is fun to be with. He always makes me laugh.” (우리 삼촌은 같이 있으면 재미있는 사람이야. 항상 웃게 만든다니까.)
▶go over (st): 점검하다, 다시 읽어보다.
“I have to go over my driver’s manual because I have a written test.” (운전면허 필기시험이 있어서 운전교본을 다시 봐야겠어.)

Go clubbing; 나이트 클럽에 가다
(Dillon and Nick are in an elevator)
Dillon: I haven't seen you around. Where have you been? 요즘 통 안보이던데 어디 갔었어? 
Nick: I've been to a convention in Chicago. 시카고에서 열린 convention에 갔다 왔어.
Dillon: I love Chicago. Did you go clubbing? 시카고 좋지. 나이트 클럽도 갔었어?
Nick: No. I had my hands full at the convention. 아니. convention에서 정신 없이 바빴어.
Dillon: You can't be serious. You love to go clubbing. 농담이겠지. 클럽 가는 거 좋아하면서.
Nick: True but I want to get ahead in my company and it takes a lot of work. 진짜. 회사서 앞서 가고픈데 그러려면 일을 많이 해야지
Dillon: You are becoming very serious lately. 요즘 들어 아주 진지해졌어.
Nick: I'm trying to be a roll model for you. 너한테도 본받을 만한 사람이 되려고 노력 중이야.
Dillon: I appreciate the thought but I doubt that it will do any good. 그리 생각해 주니 고맙지만 그런다고 크게 달라지는 게 있을까. 
Nick: I'll keep trying anyway.  어쨌든 열심히 할거야.

기억할만한 표현

▶have (one’s) hands full: 눈 코 뜰 새 없이 바쁘다. 
“Donna has her hands full with her new baby.” (Donna는 새로 태어난 아기를 보느라 정신 없이 바빠요.)
▶get ahead: 앞서가다. 성공하다. 출세하다. 
“He doesn’t like school, but he studies hard to get ahead.” (그는 등교를 싫어하지만 성공을 위해 열심히 공부합니다. 
▶a role model: 본받을 만한 사람. 모범적인 인물. 
“She is a role model for many women in business.” (그녀는 많은 여성 사업가들이 본받고자 하는 인물입니다.)


Go fifty-fifty; 비용을 절반씩 부담하다
(Laura and Mary are talking about their co-worker Rita)
Laura: Did you know that next Friday is Rita's birthday? 다음 금요일이 리타의 생일인 것 알아?
Mary: No really? 아니 정말?
Laura: Yes. 그래.
Mary: Let's go fifty-fifty and get her something together. 절반씩 내서 무슨 선물을 사주자.
Laura: Okay that sounds like a good idea. 좋아 아주 좋은 생각이야.
Mary: Now what should we get her? 그럼 뭘 사주지?
Laura: She's into classical music I know that. 리타는 클래식 음악을 좋아해 내가 그건 알지.
Mary: So some CDs might be the way to go. 그럼 CD를 사주는 게 좋을 것 같아.
Laura: On the other hand she loves to cook. So maybe we should get her something she could use in the kitchen.
그런가 하면 걔는 요리하는 걸 좋아해. 그러니까 부엌에서 쓰는 걸 사주는 건 어떨까.
Mary: How about if you get her some CDs and I get her something for the kitchen? 그럼 넌 CD를 사고 난 주방용품을 사면 어떨까?

기억할만한 표현

▶is into (so, st): ~가 ~를 좋아하다 
"My friend is into buying and collecting art." (내 친구는 미술품을 사고 모으는 취미가 있죠.) 
▶be the way to go: ~하는게 좋은 방법이다 좋은 길이다 
"She loves the color red so that red sweater would be the way to go." (빨간 색을 좋아하니 빨간 걸로 하는 게 아.)
▶on the other hand: ~ 반면에 
"He's a good worker. On the other hand he usually late for work." (그는 일을 잘하나 그는 대개 지각 출근을 하죠.)

Go in for (st); (무엇을) 좋아하다
(Arthur is talking to Ashley during a break at school)
Arthur: What are you doing this weekend? Do you have any plans? 이번 주말에 뭐 할 거야? 무슨 계획 있어?
Ashley: I'm going to the beach. 바닷가에 갈 거야.
Arthur: Are you going swimming? 수영하려고?
Ashley: No the water is too cold. I go in for rollerblading. 아니. 물이 너무 차갑잖아. rollerblading 타러 갈 거야. 
Arthur: Are you good at that?  Rollerblading 잘 타?
Ashley: Not yet but I'm getting accustomed to it. 아직 잘 못 타는데 조금씩 감이 잡혀.
Arthur: Do you fall down a lot? 많이 넘어져?
Ashley: Yes but I'm cutting down on my falls. 응. 한데 넘어지는 횟수가 줄고 있어.
Arthur: I'd like to try it some time. 제 나도 한 번 타봤으면 좋겠다.
Ashley: Try it this weekend. 이번 주말에 한 번 타봐.

기억할만한 표현

▶Is (one) good at (st)? : (무엇을) 잘 해? 
"Is Mary good at cooking?" (메리 요리 잘 해?)
▶get accustomed to (stg): (무엇에) 익숙해지다. 
"I didn't like it at first but I'm accustomed to cigar smoke." (처음엔 남편의 시가 냄새가 싫었는데 이젠 익숙해졌어.)
▶cut down on (st): (무엇을) 줄이다. 
"My doctor told me to cut down on salt in my food." (의사가 음식에 넣은 소금을 줄이래.)

Go out like a light; 금방 잠들다
Roger is visiting his sister Diana in New York City)
Diana: How did you sleep last night? 지난 밤에는 잘 잤니? 
Roger: I went out like a light. 금새 잠들었어.
Diana: Good. You look rested. 잘 했다. 푹 쉰 것 같다.
Roger: I went to sleep the second my head hit the pillow. 머리가 베개에 닿자마자 잠들었어.
Diana: Good. So what do you want to do today? 잘 했어. 오늘 뭐 하고 싶니?
Roger: I'd like to go to different stores. 다른 가게들을 가볼까 해. 
Diana: Which store first? 어떤 가게 먼저 갈까?
Roger: A bookstore. 책방부터.
Diana: There's a great bookstore just a hop skip and a jump from here. 여기서 누우면 닿을 곳에 좋은 책방이 있어.
Roger: Great. And I want to treat you to breakfast first. 잘 됐네. 그런데 먼저 누나 아침 사주고 싶은데.

기억할만한 표현

▶look rested: 푹 쉰 것 같다.
“She looks rested. Did she just get back from vacation?” (그녀 말이야, 좋아 보이는데. 휴가에서 막 돌아온 거야?)
▶(a place is) a hop, skip, and a jump from here [away]: (걸어갈 수 있을 만큼) 가깝다.
“My bank is a hop, skip, and a jump away.” (내가 가는 은행은 엎어지면 코 닿을 데 있어.)
▶treat (one) to (st): (누구를) 대접하다.
“I want to treat you to these concert tickets. I’ll pay for them.” (음악회 표는 내가 해주고 싶어. 내가 살게.)

Go stir - crazy; 좀이 쑤시다
(Mike is visiting his friend Rick in the hospital)
Mike: Rick how are you feeling? 릭 좀 어때?
Rick: I'm out of it. 정신이 없어.
Mike: Yeah I can tell. Do you want to be alone? 그래 알만하다. 혼자 있고 싶어?
Rick: Oh no. I've been alone. I've been flat on my back for two weeks. 아 아니. 계속 혼자 있었어. 2주 동안 누워있었다니까.
Mike: How much longer will you be cooped up? 얼마나 더 갇혀있어야 돼?
Rick: The doctor thinks I can go home in about two or three days. 의사 말로는 2 3주 정도면 퇴원할 수 있대.
Mike: I'll bet it won't come soon enough. 빨리 퇴원은 못 하는구나.
Rick: You're right. I'm going stir-crazy. 맞아. 좀이 쑤셔 미치겠어.
Mike: Call me when you're ready to go home and I'll give you a ride. 퇴근할 때 되면 전화해. 내가 집에까지 태워다 줄게.
Rick: Thanks I appreciate that. I'll definitely call you if I need a ride. 고마워. 정말 고마워. 태워줄 사람 필요하면 꼭 전화할게.

기억할만한 표현

▶(One) is out of it: 멍하다. 정신이 없다.
"I think I drank too much because I'm out of it."(정신이 없는 걸 보니 술을 너무 많이 마셨나 봐.)
▶(One) is flat on (one's) back: 누워있다. 앓아 눕다.
"I was very worried when I saw her flat on her back."(그녀가 누워있는 걸 보고 너무 걱정됐어.)
▶(One) is cooped up: 갇혀 있다.
"We've been cooped up in this car for three hours."(우리는 차 안에 3시간 동안 갇혀 있었어.)

Go straight (sw); (어디를) 곧장 가다
(Beth is talking to her co-worker Mary)
Beth: Mary I didn't see you at 5:00 yesterday. 메리! 어제 5시에 안보이던데. 
Mary: I wasn't feeling well so I decided to leave early. 몸이 별로 안 좋아서 일찍 퇴근했어.
Beth: Oh. How do you feel today? 아 그래. 오늘은 좀 어때?
Mary: Much better. I was feeling lightheaded so I went straight home. 훨씬 좋아졌어. 어제는 어지럼증이 있어서 곧장 집으로 갔거든.
Beth: Rest was probably the best thing for you. 그럴 땐 쉬는 게 최고일 거야.
Mary: Yes. I fell asleep the minute my head hit the pillow. 맞아. 눕자마자 곯아 떨어졌어.
Beth: That's good. I don't always fall asleep quickly when I go to bed. 좋겠다. 난 곧바로 잠들지 못해서 말이야. 
Mary: I know what you mean. I usually toss and turn. 그 심정 내가 알지. 나도 뒤척이는 편이거든.
Beth: I made a salad for lunch. Would you like to join me? 점심 먹으려고 샐러드 많이 만들어 왔는데. 같이 먹을래?
Mary: Thanks I would. 그래. 고마워.

기억할만한 표현 

▶be [feel] lightheaded: 어지럼증을 느끼다.
"I'm going to lie down. I'm feeling lightheaded." (누워야겠어. 좀 어지럽네.)
▶fall asleep the minute one's head hits the pillow: 눕자마자 잠들다. 
"She always falls asleep the minute her head hits the pillow." (그녀는 항상 베개에 머리만 닿으면 잠들어.)
▶toss and turn: 잠을 못 들고 뒤척이다. 
"My husband tossed and turned a lot in bed last night." (우리 남편은 지난 밤에 잠을 못 들고 많이 뒤척였어.)

Go through the roof; 값이 치솟다
(Sue and her friend Jamie are having lunch)
Sue: Nothing good is happening in my life lately. 요즘 되는 일이 없어.
Jamie: What's your problem? 문제가 뭔데?
Sue: The price of gas has gone through the roof, my riend is angry with me my credit cards are maxed out.
기름 값은 천정부지로 치솟는데 남친은 삐치고 카드한도액까지 다 써버렸어. 
Jamie: It could be worse. 그만 하길 다행이다.
Sue: I know you're right but I can't help it. 맞는 말이기는 한데 어떻게 하질 못하겠어.
Jamie: How can I help? 내가 어떻게 도와줘?
Sue: Give me a million dollars. 100만 달러만 주라.
Jamie: I doubt if that would help. 그거 갖고 해결이 되겠어.
Sue: I suppose you're right. I'd just have another set of problems. 네 말이 맞다. 다른 문제들이 또 생겼어.
Jamie: You're going to have to deal with your problems. 잘 처리해야 되겠다.

기억할만한 표현

▶max out: 한도액을 다 쓰다. 
"I didn't want to max out my debit card but I had no choice." (데빗카드 한도를 다 쓰고 싶진 않았지만 도리 없었어)
▶can't help it: 어쩔 수 없다. 
"I can't help it if he doesn't like me." (그 사람이 날 안 좋아해도 어쩔 수 없어요.)
▶deal with (so, st): (사람이나 일을) 잘 다루다. 
"She's been dealing with her health for a month." (그녀는 한 달 동안 건강을 잘 챙기고 있어요.)

Get to the point; 요점만 말해
(Amy is talking to her sister Erin)
Amy: This is our first business lunch and I'm paying for it. 이게 우리의 첫 번째 사업상 점심이니까 식사값은 내가 낼게.
Erin: Our first business lunch? You lost me. 우리의 첫 번째 사업상 점심? 무슨 말이야.
Amy: Last night I saw a woman selling her homemade jellies. 어젯밤에 어떤 집에서 만든 젤리를 파는 걸 봤거든.
Erin: Please get to the point. 요점만 말해봐.
Amy: We can do the same thing. 우리도 같은 걸 할 수 있다는 거지.
Erin: Do you want to sell that woman's homemade jelly? 그 여자가 집에서 만든 젤리를 팔겠다는 거야?
Amy: Don't be silly. Remember how popular Mom's barbecue sauce has always been?
말도 안 되는 소리. 엄마가 만든 바비큐 소스가 얼마나 인기가 좋았는지 기억하지?
Erin: Yeah. She always wanted to start her own business. 응. 엄마는 항상 그걸로 사업을 시작하고 싶어했잖아.
Amy: I'm sure we have what it takes to sell it for her. 엄마가 만든 바비큐 소스 파는 데 필요한 건 다 있는 거야.
Erin: I like your idea. We can carry out her dream. 언니 아이디어 좋다. 엄마의 꿈을 이룰 수 있겠어.

기억할만한 표현

▶lose someone: (누가) 무슨 말을 하는 지 이해하지 못하다.
"You lose me every time you talk about computers."(네가 컴퓨터 얘기만 하면 무슨 말인지 모르겠어.)
▶have what it takes: 자질이 있다.
"He doesn't have what it takes to be a musician."(그 사람은 뮤지션 자질이 없어.)
▶carry out (st): (무엇을) 실행에 옮기다.
"They carried their plans out to perfection."(그 사람들은 계획을 완벽하게 실행에 옮겼어.) 

Go under; 적자다, 손해를 보다
(Kathy and Erica are talking about where to go for lunch)
Kathy: Let's go to that Italian restaurant we went to before. 전에 갔던 그 이태리 식당에 가자.
Erica: They're not in business anymore. 거긴 더 이상 영업 안 해.
Kathy: What happened? The food was so good there. 왜? 음식이 너무 맛있었는데.
Erica: They went under. 적자가 났어.
Kathy: Really? That's too bad. I liked that place. 정말? 그거 너무 안됐다. 난 좋았는데.
Erica: I know. me too 그러게. 나도.
Kathy: So where should we go? We only have an hour you know. 그럼 우리 어디 가지? 한 시간 밖에 없잖아.
Erica: Let's give that Mexican restaurant a try. 그 멕시코 식당 한 번 가볼까?
Kathy: Okay. I like Mexican food. 그래. 난 멕시코 음식 좋아.
Erica: There's usually a long line to get in. 통은 들어가려면 줄이 길어.

기억할만한 표현

▶they're not in business: 폐업했다 문닫다
"That shoe store is closed. They're not in business anymore." (그 신발 가게는 닫았습니다. 더 이상 영업 안 해요.)
▶give (so, st) a try: 시도해보다
"Let's give that market downtown a try. Maybe they're open." (다운타운에 있는 그 마켓에 가봅시다. 어쩌면 열었을 수도 있죠.)
▶a long line to get in: 줄이 길다 
"That cafe is so good there's usually a long line to get in." (그 카페는 아주 좋아요 보통 들어가려면 줄이 길어요.)

Go way back; (친구들이) 오래 전부터 알고 지내다(I)
(Darren is being interviewed by Jim in his office)
Jim: Good morning. 안녕하세요.
Darren: Good morning Jim. Nice to meet you. 안녕하세요 짐. 처음 뵙겠습니다.
Jim: Nice to meet you Darren. Pull up a chair. 반가워요 대런. 앉으세요. 
Darren: Thank you. 감사합니다.
Jim: So how long have you known Roger? 그래 Roger 와는 얼마나 오래 알고 지냈어요.
Darren: Roger and I go way back. We met in our first year in college. 오랜 친구죠. 대학 1학년에 만났으니.
Jim: Roger tells me that you have experience teaching. 라저 말로는 강사 경험이 있다던데.
Darren: Yes. I taught English in high school in New York. And I can speak a little Korean.
예. 뉴욕의 한 고등학교에서 영어를 가르쳤어요. 그리고 한국말도 조금 합니다. 
Jim: That's good. That can come in handy.  잘 됐네요. 도움이 되겠어요.
Darren: I taught in South Korea for two years. 한국에서도 2년간 가르쳤습니다.

기억할만한 표현

▶pull up a chair: 의자에 앉다. 
"Hi. Pull up a chair and join me for lunch." (안녕. 이리 앉아서 나랑 점심 같이 먹어.)
▶(so) tells me: (누가) 그러는데.
"Laura tells me that you're getting married. Congratulations!" (Laura가 그러는데 너 결혼한다며. 축하해!)
▶(st) can come in handy: (무엇이) 유용하다. 편리하다.
"I keep a flashlight next to my bed at night. It comes in handy." (밤에 침대 옆에 손전등을 놔두는데 편리해.)

Go (way) back; (아주) 오랫동안 알고 지내다(II)
(Doug and Roger are talking about friends)
Doug: Roger who would you consider your best friend?넌 제일 친한 친구가 누구 같아?
Roger: That would be Dan. 댄이겠지.
Doug: How long have you known him? 얼마나 알고 지냈어?
Roger: Oh Dan and I go way back. 아 게하고 난 아주 오랫동안 알고 지냈지.
Doug: When did you meet? 언제 만났는데?
Roger: We met in December of 1965. 1965년 12월에 만났어.
Doug: Really? And you still keep in touch? 정말? 아직도 연락해?
Roger: Yes. We've been through a lot together. 응. 인생의 희로애락을 함께 나눈 사이야.
Doug: Like what? 어떤 거?
Roger: Oh marriages divorces deaths in the family; everything in life. 아 결혼과 이혼 가족의 죽음 인생의 모든 거.

기억할 만한 표현

▶keep in touch: 서로 연락을 주고 받다. 
“I keep in touch with some of my high school friends.”(난 고등학교 친구 몇 명과 연락하고 지내.)
▶(People) have been through a lot together:(누가) 인생의 희로애락을 함께 나누다. 
“My wife and I have been through a lot together.”(아내와 나는 인생의 희로애락을 함께 나눴어.)
▶like what?: 예를 들면?
A:“I love Korean food.” (한국음식 좋아해.) B:“Like what?” (예를 들면?) A:“Oh, bulgogi and kalbi.” (아, 불고기하고 갈비.)

Go way over the top (=be ~); 과장하다, 도를 지나치다
(Ralph is talking to his friend John)
Ralph: Did you go to Judy's party on Saturday? 토요일에 Judy의 파티에 갔었어?
John: Yes I did. Have you ever been to Judy's house? 응 갔었지. Judy네 집에 가본 적 있어?
Ralph: No I haven't.  아니 없어.
John: Well you know how she's crazy about the color red? 걔가 빨간색 아주 좋아하는 것 알지?
Ralph: Yes she loves the color red. Why? 응 빨간색이라면 아주 굉장하지. 왜?
John: Well she painted her living room red! 글쎄 거실을 빨갛게 칠 했더라고
Ralph: She did? No you're putting me on. 정말? 농담하는 거지.
John: No I'm not. Go to her house and see for yourself. 아니 아냐. 가서 직접 봐.
Ralph: The whole living room is red? 거실이 온통 빨게?
John: Yes. I think she went way over the top painting her living room. 그래. 거실 칠하는데 도를 지나 쳤어.

기억할만한 표현 

▶be crazy about (someone or something): ~를 아주 좋아하다 
"He's crazy about his new sports car." (그는 새로 산 스포츠카에 아주 푹 빠져있습니다.)
▶you're putting me on: 놀리다 농담하다 
"You're getting married? I don't believe you. You're putting me on." (네가 결혼한다고? 난 못 믿어. 날 놀리는 거지.)
▶see for yourself: 직접 보세요
A: "He didn't buy a red sports car." B:"You don't believe me? Look in the parking lot. See for yourself

Go well with (st else); 잘 어울리다
(Roger is at his desk working when Jim walks into his office wearing a very nice suit
Roger: Wow! Look at you! You look snappy! 와! 이게 누구야! 멋진데!
Jim: Thanks. It's a new suit. 고마워. 새 양복이야.
Roger: What's the occasion? 무슨 날이야?
Jim: I have a meeting later with administrators of a medical school. 이따가 의과대학 행정과 사람들과 약속이 있어.
Roger: Oh do they have foreign students who want to study English with us? 우리와 영어 배우려는 외국학생이 있어? 
Jim: Yes. 응.
Roger: That's a nice tie. It goes well with your suit. 넥타이 멋있네. 양복과 아주 잘 어울려.
Jim: Thanks. 고마워.
Roger: It would be nice to get more students. 학생들이 더 왔으면 좋겠다.
Jim: I know. I hope this meeting pays off. 그럼. 오늘 자리가 성과가 있으면 좋겠어.

기억할만한 표현

▶looks snappy: 멋지다.
“You look snappy in that shirt.” (그 양복 입으니 멋지다.)
▶What’s the occasion? : 무슨 날이야?
“You want to take me out to dinner? What’s the occasion?” (나한테 저녁을 사겠다고? 무슨 날이야?)
▶(st) pays off: (무엇을 한) 보람이 있다. 성과가 나다.
“Exercising every day is paying off. I have more energy.” (매일 운동을 한 보람이 있어. 힘이 생겨.)

